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STATE OF NEW JERSEY

INTRODUCED JANUARY 28, 1974

By Assemblymen BAER, WOODSON, HAMILTON, KEAN, BAR-
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BOUR, OWENS, MARTIN, KLEIN, Assemblywoman WILSON,
Assemblymen WITDEL, PERSKIE, WORTHINGTON, VAN
WAGNER, SALKIND, HAWKIN 8, LeEFANTE, FITZPATRICK,
STEWART, YATES SWEENEY, RUANE, GEWERTZ,
HOLLENBECK, VISOTOKY, HERMAN, FROUDE MacINNES,
FORAN, CONTILLO, GLADSTONE, OTLOWSKI, FLYNN,
NERI, FLORIO, McMANIMON, KOZLOSKI, GREGORIO,
D’AMBROSA, McCARTHY, RYS, Assemblywomen CURRAN,
CROCE, Assemblyman KARCHER, Assemblywoman TOTARO,
Assemblymen BROWN, GORMAN, PERKINS, JACKMAN,
GALLO, NEWMAN, DOYLE, DEVERIN, CODEY, KEEGAN,
ADUBATO, CALI, ESPOSITO, Assemblywoman BURGIO,
Assemblymen CHINNICI, EWING, HURLEY, ORECHIO, BATE,
SCHUCK, BORNHEIMER, SINSIMER, PELLECCHIA,
SNEDEKER, GALLAGHER, HICKS, PATERO, GARRUBBO
and RIZZOLO

Referred to Committee on J udiciary

Ax Act concerning meetings of certain public bodies and repealing
P. L. 1960, c. 173.

Be 11 ENacTED by the Senate and General Assembly of the State
of New Jersey:

1. This act shall be known and may be cited as the ““‘Open Public
Meetings Act.”’

2. The Legislature finds and declares that the right of the public
to be present at all meetings of public bodies, and to witness in
full detail all phases of the deliberation, policy formulation, and
decision making of public bodies, is vital to the enhancement and
proper functioning of the democratic process; that secrecy in public
affairs undermines the faith of the public in government and the
public’s effectiveness in fulfilling its role in a democratic society,

and hereby declares it to be the public policy of this State to insure
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the right of its citizens to have adequate advance notice of and the
right to attend all meetings of public bodies at which any business
affecting the public is discussed or acted upon in any way except
only in those circumstances where otherwise the public interest
would be clearly endangered or the personal privacy or guaranteed
rights of individuals would be clearly in danger of unwarranted
invasion.

3. As used in this act:

a. ““Public body’’ means a commission, authority, board, couneil,
committee and every other group organized under the laws of this
State consisting of two or more persons, to perform a public gov-
crnmental funetion, including the Legislature, and any committee
composed of members of such public body or appoiuted or estab-
lished by it, but docs not mean or include the office of the Governor,
the judicial branch of the government, any parole board or any
agency or body acting in a parole capacity, the State Commission
of Investigation.

b. ‘““Meeting” means and includes any gathering attended by,
or open to, all of the members of a public body, held with the in-
tent, on the part of the members of the body, to discuss or act upon
publie business.

c. ‘‘Public business’’ means and includes all matters acted upon
or discussed by a public body which relate in any way, directly or
indirectly, to the performance of its functions or the conduct of its
business.

d. ““Act upon or discuss’’ means and includes the discussion and
voting upon motions, resolutions, rules, regulations, policies, ordi-
nances and statutes; discussion as to whether or not any of the
same shall be adopted or acted upon or placed on the agenda of
the public body for present or future action; discussion or action
pertaining to the procedures to be followed by the public body in
conducting any meeting, or any hearing it may hold or propose
to hold, or the procedure to be followed by it with respect to.any
matter coming before it; discussions which relate in any way to
the taking or not taking of any action by the public body or any
of its agents, cmployces, committees or agencies; and discussions
or actions which relate in any way to the governmental functions
for which the public body was established.

e. ‘“Adequate notice’’ means written advance notice of at least
72 hours, giving the time, date, and location of the proposed meet-
ing or meetings, (1) prominently posted in at least one public place
reserved for such or similar announcements, (2) mailed to at least
two newspapers circulating in the municipality in which the pro-
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posed meeting is to be held, ut least one of which newspapers is
regularly published at least 5 days per week and at least one of
which is the official newspaper, whoere any such has been designated
by the public body or applicable political subdivision, and (3) filed
with the clerk of the municipality, or the clerk of the county or the
Secretary of State in the case respectively of municipal, county
or other public bodies.

4. a. Except as provided by subsection b. of this section, or for
any meeticg limited only to consideration of ilems listed in sec-
tion 6. b. no public body shall hoid a meeting unless adequate notice
thereof has been provided to the publie.

D. A public body may hold a meeting notwithstanding the failure
to provide adequate notice if:

(1) such meetling is required in crder to deal with matters of
such urgency and importance that a delay for the purpose of pro-
viding adequate notice would be likely to result in substantial harm
to the public interest; and

(2) the meeting is limited to discassion of and acting with
respect to such matters of urgency and imporfanuce; and

(3) notice of such meeting is provided as soon as possible fol-
lowing the calling of such meeting by posting written notice of the
same in the public place described in section 3. e. above, and also
by notifying the two newspapers described in section 3. e. by tele-
phone, telegram, or by delivering a written notice of same to such
newspapers; and

(4) either (a) the public body could not rcasonably have fore-
seen the need for such meeting at a time when adequate notice
could have been provided; or (b) although the public body could
reasonably have foresceen the need for such meeting at a tinte when
adequate notice could have been provided, it nevertheless failed to
do so.

5. At the commencement of every meeting of a public body the
person presiding shall announce publicly, and shall cause to be
entered in any minutes of the mecting, a statement to the effect:

a. that adequate notice of the meeting has been provided, specify-
ing the time, place, and manner in which such notice was pro-
vided; or

b. that adequate notice was not provided, in which case such
announcement shall state (1) the nature of the urgency and im-
portance referred to in subsection 4. b. (1) and the nature of the
substantial harm to the public interest likely to result from a
delay in the holding of the meeting; (2) that the meeting will be

limited to discussion of and acting with respect to such matters
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of urgency and importance; (3) the time, place, and manner in
which notice of the meeting was provided; and (4) either (a) that
the need for such meeting could not reasonably have been foreseen
at a time when adequate notice could have been provided, in which
event, such announcement shall specify the reason why such need
could not reasonably have been foreseen; or (b) that such need
could reasonably have been foreseen at a time when adequate notice
could have been provided, but such notice was not provided, in
which event the announcement shall speeify the recason why ade-
quate notice was not provided.

6. a. Iixcept as provided by subscetions b. and c. of this scetion,
all meetings of public bodies shall be open to the public at all times.

b. A public body may exclude the public only from that portion
of a meeting at which the public body discusscs:

(1) Any matter which, by express provision of law is rendered
confidential or is excluded from the provisions of subsection a. of
this section.

(2) Any matter in which the rclease of information would im-
pair a right to receive funds from the Government of the United
States.

(3) Any personal records, data, reports, recommendations, or
other personal material of any educational, training, social service,
medical, health, custodial, child protection, rehabilitation, legal
defense, welfare, housing, relocation, insurance and similar pro-
gram or institution operated by a public body pertaining to any
specific individual admitted to or served by such institution or
program, including but not limited to information reclative to the
individual’s personal and family circumstances, and any material
pertaining to admission, discharge, treatment, progress or condi-
tion of any individual, unless the individual concerned (or his
guardian) shall request in writing that the same be disclosed
publicly.

(4) Any collective bargaining agreement, or proposed collective
bargaining agreement, or the terms and conditions which the public
body proposes to include in any collective bargaining agreement,
including the negotiation of the terms and conditions thereof with
employees or representatives of employees of the public body;
provided, however, that any such collective bargaining agreement
shall be finally approved by the public body only at a meeting to
which the public is admitted.

(5) Any matter involving the purchase of lands with public
funds, the protection of the physical safety of public officials, in-
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vestigations of violations or possible violations of the law, any
pending or anticipated litigation or con{ract negotiation other than
in subsection b. (4) herein in which the public body is, or may
become a party, or other activitics where the accomplishment of
the object of the public body is likely to be materially prejudiced
if its action or proposed action is made publicly known prior to
the accomplishment of such object; provided however, that before
discussing or acling upon any maticr described in this subscetion,
the pabiic body snail first adopt a resolution, at a meeting to which
the public shall be adinitted-

(a) stating the general natura of the subject to be acted
upon or discussed;

(b) determining that accomplishment of the object of the
public body is likely to be materially prejudiced if its action
or proposed action is made publiely known prior to the ae-
complishment of such object, and stating, in general terms,
the reasons why such maierial prejudice would bhe likely to
result, and, as precisely as possible, the time when or the
circumstances under which the action or discussion of the
public body can be disclosed to the public.

(6) Any matter involving the employment, continued employ-
ment, termination of employment, terms and conditions of
employment, evaluation of the performance of, or disciplining of,
any individual employed by the public body, unless the public body
has reecived from the individual employee or employees whose
rights could be adversely affected a consent in writing that such
matter or matters may be discussed at a meeting from which the
public is excluded.

7. a. Any action taken by a public body at a meeting which does
not conform with the provisions of this act shall be void.

b. Any party, including any member of the public, may institute
a proceeding in lieu of prerogative writ in the Superior Court to
challenge any action taken by a public body on the grounds that
such action is void for the reasons stated in subsection a. of this
section, and if the court shall find that the action was taken at a
meeting which does not conform to the provisions of this act, the
court shall declare such action void.

8. Any person, including a member of the public, may apply to
the Superior Court for injunctive orders or other remedies to in-
sure compliance with the provisions of fhis act, and the court shall
issue such orders and provide such remedies as shall be neeessary

to insure compliance with the provisions of this act.
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9. Any person who knowingly participates in a meeting of a
public body of which he is a member, not held in accordance with
the provisions of this act, is a disorderly person.

10. At least once cach year, within 7 days following the annual
organization or reorganization meeting of a public body, or if
there be no such organization or reorganization meeting in any
year, then by not later than January 7 of such year, every public
body shall post in the place described in subsection 3. e. (1), mail
to the newspapers described in subsection 3. e. (2), submit to the
persons described in subsection 3. e. (3), for the purpose of public
inspection a schedule of the regular meetings of the public body
to be held during the succeeding vear. Such schedule shall contain
the location of each meeting to the extent it is known, and the time
and date of each meeting. In the event that such schedule is there-
after revised, the public body, within 7 days following such revision,
shall post, mail and submit such revision in the manner described
above.

11. Any person may request that a public body mail to him ad-
vance written notice of all meetings of such body, and upon pre-
payment by such person of a reasonable sum, if any has been fixed
by resolution of the public body to cover the costs of providing
such notice, the public body shall mail to sucli person written ad-
vance notice of all of its mecetings within the time prescribed by
subsection 3. e. herein, subject only to the exceptions set forth in
subsection 4. b. herein.

12. If any section, subsection, clause, sentence, paragraph, or
part of this act or the application thereof to any person or circum-
stances, shall, for any reason, be adjudged by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair,
or invalidate the remainder of this act.

13. This act shall be liberally construed in order to accomplish
its purpose and the public policy of this State as set forth in sec-
tion 2.

14. P. L. 1960, c. 173 (C. 10:4-1 to 10:4-5) is repealed.

15. This act shall take effect 90 days after its enactment.

STATEMENT
The public’s right to know the true source of governmental
decisions and to witness in full detail the process of public policy
formulation is frequently obstructed by the inability of members
of the public and the press to attend certain policy-making sessions
of public bodies. This bill would put the conduct of public business
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on an entirely open basis by requiring all discussions and decisions
of public bodies, including those now held or made in ‘“‘executive
sessions,’’ to take place at meetings open to the public and for
which adequate notice has been given.

Action taken without adequate notice would be invalid except
under special procedures for demoustrable emergencies. Highly
embarrassing required notices would discourage public bodies from
using avoidablec emergencies to circumvent adequate notice re-
quirements.

Confidential deliberation would be permitted only in those ex-
ceptions where, otherwise, the public interest would be clearly
endangered or the personal privacy or guaranteed rights of indi-

viduals would be clearly in danger of unwarranted invasion.



1 ASSEMBLYMAN ELDRIDGE HAWKINS (Chairman): I

2 think we can start the meeting. Assemblyman Baer, sponser
3 of the bill, has not arrived yet. 1 can introduce those
legislators present that will be on the panel hearing

the matter, and I'm golng to give some introductory
remarks as to some of the problems we are already aware
‘of with reference to the bill, so that if you wish to

address yourselves to what we already know feel free.
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But we will let you know that we know some of the problems.
10 I would like to introduce at this time some

11 of the members present: Assemblyman Richard Codey,

12 from Orange; Assemblyman Thomas Gallo, from Hoboken; to

13 my right is Vice-Chalrman of the committee, William J.

14 Bate, from Clifton; and to the extreme right of myself

15 is the Honorable John P. Doyle, fiom Bricktown, New Jcisey;
16 and myself, I'm £ldridge Hawkins, Chairman.

17 Very briefly, I am just going to read ort

18 some of the questions thatrare raised by A-1030 as it

19 is presently drafted.

20 1. There are documents which are not public

21 under the right to know law which would have to be
discussed in public under this bill, unless section 6 b.(1)
which exempts matters made confidential by express

Provision of law 1s read to mean matters which relate

to non-public documents which are private because they




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

are not public. Should the right to know law be changed
so that documents which are discussed in public are
clearly either publiec or not public, or should the bill
be changed to exempt discussion of those documents which
are presently not public from public meetings and then
change the right to know law to make public what should
be public?

2. Should action as well as discussion be
allowed at an executive session? A-1030, section 6,
begins with "discussion" but at the end of the sectign
refers to when the "action" can be disclosed. It is
therefore unclear whether the intent 1is that such action
can be taken 1in executlive session or not.

3. Section 4 b. provides that if there is no
notice, and i1f it is so announced at the beginning of the
meeting and the meeting is limited to matters of "urgency

and importance,"

they have satisfied the act, even
though they could have anticipated and notified as
required. Should this be s0?

4. Under section 2 (b) a "meeting" which must
be public is one which all members can attend. If not,
1t can be closed. This keeps the legislative party
conferences closed but may also close the system in most

communities because minority party members will be just

totally excluded from much of the decision making proceés.
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5. Criminal penalties are available in other
étates for this kind of law and have never been used.
Should the penalty be changed to a forfeiture of office
or a fine?

6. Section 7 makes any decision made at a
meeting in violatlion of the act null and void. It is
similar to a p?ovision in a California bill which caused
the Governor to veto that bill. California now has a law
without any provision for voiding such actions. Should
this section be changed to give the court discretion to
vold actions or should 1t be eliminated?

7. The sending of 72 hours notice to two
newspapers which circulate in the municipality where the
meeting is to be held seéms inadequate for public notice
for both county and state agencies. It is also unclear
if this is to be a legal notice. 1In addition, there are
many reglional bodies who cover several counties for whom
filing with either one county clerk or the Secretary of
State would not provide much notice and égain the
newspaper notice provided would be insufficient.

8. It 1is unclear whether failure to send 72

hour notice to those on the mailing list provided for in

section 11 1is a violation of the advanced notice requirement

of section 3 e. There 1s also no provision for removing

names from the 1list after a period of time.
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9. There 1s no provision for minutes of the
meeting to be kept. Should there be?

10. Only the purchase of land but hot the
rental or condemnation of land 1s exempt from public
discusslon. Should the other be protected as well, at
least 1in certaln circumstances?

11. The employment exception 1s for those
"employed" by the public body which could be construed
as not exempting the Senate consideration of appointees
in the advise and consent process and the appointment
and removal of those on boards, etc. of municipal and
county governments.

12. The definition of '"public body" can be read
to include advisory groups. Should these be specifically
included?

13. Should those who bring suit to enforce the
act be entitled to costs and attorney's fees if they are
successful? Under the present section 8 they should not.

Assemblyman Gregorio has just joined us, from
Linden, New Jersey.

I'm sorry Assemblyman Baer has not as yet
arrived, but I don't think we should hold up the hearing.

We will allow him to speak when he arrives.

The second man listed on the list is Mr. Michael

Rappeport.
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Incidentally, there will not be any specific
limitation to the time 1limit that you may have to give
your talk or give whatever you have to give to the panel.
But if I, in my discretion, find that it's taking a little
bit too much time, or if we have already heard the same
material discussed by someone else, then I will use my
prerogative to remind you that we have a few minutes more
to hear your talk and you will have to call it at an end
very shortly. But feel free to tell us your complete
story, each one of you.

MICHAEL RAPPEPORT: I have a few coples of a
prepared statement.

Mr. Chairman, and members of the committee:

I speak on behalf of the American Civil Liberties
Union of New Jersey.

This measure, designated the Open Public Meetings
Act, goes a long way toward the goals of opening to
public view the transaction by public bodies of public
business. Beyond its direct effects in this regard-is the
atmosphere of openness which this measure would foster.

The care with which this bill seeks to delineate
public matter and the guldelines applicable thereto, the
thoughtful separation of public matter from matter
appropriately in the domain of protected privacy, are

Particularly well thought out.
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I might say parenthetically that the relatively
minor comments I think that the chairmanvmade in
introducing the bill, most of those we would like to see
the stronger position taken, naturally, with the exception
perhaps of the rental or condemnation of the land, which
we think is a reasonable exclusion of the public view..

This measure will not relieve all of the abuses
resulting from secret deliberations. Certainly problems
neither foreseen nor foreseeable may arise, but these
may be corrected as experience requires. It has been
claimed that this bill would prevent any private discussion
prevent party caucuses, and, according to at least one
town council which has gone on record in opposition,
"would require public notice if two councilmen happened
to meet over a cup of coffee." The bill itself
answers these complaints. Section 3(b) defines a meeting
as "...any gathering attended by, or open to ALL of the
members of a public body." It appears that of these
objections the bill is applicable only to caucuses of a
party holding all of the seats on the public body, a
clrcumstance which does apply to a few municipal councils
and other bodies but 1is far from generally the case. The
need for a political party or faction to be able to meet
privately to discuss strategy, negotiate policy disputes

and develop compromises is clear. Where one party controls
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all of the seats on a public body, however, such discussions
tend frequently to be private meetings at which decisions
are made w;thout public debate or recourse. When the
decision is made in a private caucus to "kill" a proposal,
the opportunity for an open and public vote 1s lost. Thus,
if party caucuses are included in the bill where one
party holds all of the seats 1n a public body, we regard
it as right and proper that they should be.

Indeed, the only significant shortcoming in
A-1030 is the omission of a duty to report the decisions
of maJority‘party caucuses which preclude publlc votes
in this and other legislative bodies. It would be
desirable, therefore, to add language to the bill's
definition of a meeting to include meetings of any
number of members of a public body which take votes or
polls_,ﬁg{i}bh in practice bind a majority of that body
to a speéific position. And note, we should have
emphasized in practice. Iegally, there is>no binding,
but 1n practice 1t does that. And we are strongly in
favor of not allowing people to hlde behind the private
caucus as to why a blll never came to the floor. Such
a change would not intrude on the privacy of any meeting
devoted to discussion and negotlation, at which no binding

vote was taken. An alternﬁ é approach to the problem of

¢
insuring that party caucuses do not prevent debate of
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important issues would be to provide a mechanism by which

a majority--perhaps as littlée as 15 per cent--can compel
W

a public body to take form“ action on any proposal,

assuming, of course, reasonable rules about length of

time and this type of thing.

Even without such a change we commend the bill
as an intelligent approach to the problem of insuring
public accountability and urge its adoption.

I will be glad to answer any questions.‘

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Thank you very~much for
your presentation. ' e

The Honorable John P. Davidson, Mayor of
Chatham Borough.

HONORABLE JOHN P. DAVIDSON: Mr. Chairman,
Members of the Assembly Committee on Judiciary:

My name is John P. Davidson. I am the Mayor
of Chatham Borough and President of the New Jersey State
League of Municipalities. I am appearing here today
on behalf of the New Jersey League.

The League's Legislative Committee has not
completed its consideration of Assembly 1030, the Open
Public Meetings Act. My comments, therefore, are primarily
1n the nature of observations and questions rather than

the statement of a formal policy position. We understand

that many other local officials have statements to make
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concerning A-1030. This statemept should not 1in any
manner preclude those observations or 1imit the numerous
questions raised by other local officlals.

The purpose and objectives of A-1030 are
philosophically sound, and we would support them in
principle. A number of questions concerning specific
provisions have been ralsed by individual officials,
however, and I would like to address my remarks to those
questions.

Our first query concerns the definition of
"public body." We wonder why the office of the
Governor is specifically excluded from the provisions
of this Act. It would appear to us that the public's
interest in the conduct of the affairs of this State
are equally relevant to the conduct of the Governor's
offigéfiand in fact, even more so.

i Our second question concerné the definition

of "meeting." Would this definition, as presently
drafted, apply to a chance discussion between a Township
Mayor, the member of the Township Committee who is
chairman of Public Safety and the Police Chlef concerning
the application of new drug control techniques which the
three men had read about the evening before in an article
in the current 1issue oflgygolice magazine? Other members

of the public body were ‘not present, but would have been
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welcomed to the discussion 1f they had happened by at the
local barber shop or Littlevleague game or wherever the .
discussion ctook place. Agu‘what i1 the discussion 1involved
not two, but three members of the local public body and,

as 1s the case in many townships, the three comprised the
total governing body? And what if the conversation was
merely a discussion along the lines of, "Maybe we ought

to talk seriously about this at a meeting sometime"? Or

how about five members of a planning board, who, while on

a trip to inspect a subdivision site, discuss?that site

\ .
o

or chance to comment about some other pending}application
location wﬁich they pass on the way? Would the provisions
of this Act apply to the countless quasi-official encounters
such as those?

A third question relates also to discussions of
public business. We can visualize numerous instances,
for example, where the practices and reputation of a
contractor or supplier might be questioned by a member
of the municipal council or committee. It might develop
that the member had merely heard that another community
or other customers had encountered a problem with a
particular supplier in terms of delivery deadlines,
reliability, etc. and suggests that further ‘inquiry be
made by way of verification before the public body commits

itself contractually. What if such rumors are merely rumors]

10



1 If they were voliced by a public officlal at a public

2 meeting, regardless of his good intentions, would this be

3 cause for libel proceedings on the part of the supplier

4 involved? Or what if the supplier or consultant or

5 contractor had a now largely corrected alcoholism problem

6 in his past? Should such a matter be openly discussed

7 at a public meeting? This particular category does

8 not appear to be adequately covered by the exemption

9 contained in paragraph 6(3) on page 4 dealing with various
10 records and rep;rts of a confidential nature.

11 "Act upon or discuss" also includes the "taking

12 or not taking of any action by the public body or any of
13 1ts agents, employees, committees or agencies.” We doubt
14 that the public would have to be present every time a

15 local employee takes an action in carrying out his govern-
16 menﬁﬁ}\duties. We also question whether any council

17 committee could operate under this definition.

18 Our next question concerns "adequate notice."

19 Does the reference to "written advance notice" mean

20 merely that information must be provided to the newspapers
21 in guestion or that such notice must be in the form of

22 a legal notice to be printed along with other such

23 official notices? Also with regard to the notice, we

24 would strongly suggest tﬂ'k the requirement for mailing
M

25 within 72 hours to the heWspapers 1s unrealistic. A notice

’
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mailed on Friday evening after a decision was reached
officially by the public gbdy would not be received in
some instances until Mo#ﬁéy and subsequent publicatlion by
the newspaper would not meet the 72 hour deadline. We
would suggest substituting the words 'by telephone,
telegram or by delivering a written notice." This
phraseology does appear on page 3 on line 17. Keep in
mind that many official newspapers are weeklies, and notices
in such publications could often delay effitient local
administration. R
Our next question concerns the aéﬁiication of
the Act to collectlve bargaining negotiations as provided
for in paragraph 6(4) on page 4. When, in fact, would
an agreement on a contract be reached? At 3 A.M. after
a long and ultimately successful final negotlating session
or medlation session, as the case may be, or two weeks
later at an official meeting?
Our next question concerns the provision appearing
on page 5 which relates to the passage of a resolution
in those special instances when the public interest
would be prejudiced by open discussion. The provision
states that the resolution must describe, and I quote,
"the general nature" of the subject to be discussed or

acted upon. While thils would appear to be an ample

provision covering those instances where full disclosure
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would so Jeopardlize the public interest, are there not
many instances where even mention of the subject matter
itself would be detrimental? For example, the mere
referencg to the fact that the public body was going
behind closed doors to discuss police rrotection for the
recreation director who had been threatened would, in
itself, impede the effective implementation of such a
program. Similarly, to publicly state, by way of the
resolution that the public body wished to discuss the
feasibility of obtaining a public landfill site might
seriously and unnecessarily jeopardize negotlations with
another landfill dperator.

Our final question concerns the interpretation
of section 7 on page 5 which deals with volding of actions
taken by a public body which are subsequently determined
to be in violation of this Act. Our question is actually
two-fﬁ{é? In the event that an action was discussed and

'
agreed ﬁpon at a private conference meeting, 1n violation
of the Act, and then subsequently discussed again, reviewed
and ‘acted upon at a duly called public meeting, would the
terms and conditions of that agreement or act be voided?
The second part of the question is this: What would be
the effect on innocent parties who proceeded on any number

of projects or commitmentsq&yrsuant to a contract or

approval from the public b@d& and then had the agreement

(]
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or approval voided? Is there any provision for a
severablllity clause as pqésently exists in most contractual
agreements? And finall@@hwould not such a provision,
although affording legal reliet to the public, create a
serious negative effect of discouraging parties from
entering into agreements wilth a public bddy, since at any
time an official action might be challenged and sustained
in courtv as void?

It may appear that I have recited a number of
petty, technical situations which are not feéily germane
to the main philosophical thrust of this p;g;osed Act,
namely, open conduct of government and public participation
in the atfairs of government. However, I would hasten
to point out that examples such as those I cited--and there
are many more--are the nit.y-gritty of everyday operation
of government. To ignore them would do a very great
disservice to those who are trying to administer the
public's affairs, to those who are doing business with
the public, and to the public itself.

We have one or two further thoughts of a general
nature. Experience has shown that "work sessions" which
afford an opportunity for free discussion without fear
of being misquoted or quoted out of context are extremely

valuable devices for uninhibited exploration of issues. It

all discussions must be discussed publicly, as required




1 under this bill, much will go unsald and unexplored.

2 Public 1ssues will, in fact, be acted upon without the
3 fullest possible discussion. The public will suffer

4 as a result, not gain.

5 We also question whether a requirement at all
6 discussions of public business be open to the public

7 wlll not place a burden on those members of the news

8 media and the public who desire to fully cover all such
9 deliberations. ‘Many evenings are spend on budget work
10 sessions and many officlal meetings, which themselves run
11 several hours in duration, are preceded by lengthy

12 preliminary sessions. To fully cover all such meetings
13 would demand virtually every evening and many weekends

14 on the part of those interested.

15 Our conclusion, then, is that the bill, as
16 presgp&%y drawn, 1s commendable in its objectives but
17 shoffJQighted in its specific application. We suggest
18 thoughtful modification of some of its broad-sweeping
19 definitions and language to provide a workable balance

20 between the public interest and the mechanics of

21 implementing that interest. Thank you.

22 ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Sir, I want to thank you
23 very much. There will be some questions, but I wanted to

'24 comment, I'm sure we don’i’%onsider what you said petty,
Mo

25 || and they may have been technical, but the committee is very
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interested and that's why we are holding the hearings to
determine what possible tecbnical objections there may
be. We are interested 1n‘§hnd1ng out what problems there
would be if this bill were to be enacted. We thank you
for bringing this to our attention.

I have a question. You have pointed out some
very cogent arguments, very specific examples of why
possibly the bill should not be enacted as 1t 1is. But
what we are also interested in finding out, are there any

possible alternatives to the wording of the b&ll, In
v "

1\4'
other words, 1s there any definable distinction between

those meetings which should be private and those meetings
which should be public. Can you give us some help in that
area?

MAYOR DAVIDSON: The statement I just gave is

on behalf of the New Jersey State League of Municipalities.

Now, this 1s my personal opinion, and most of you are
under 40. I have been in politics for 21 years, either
as a councilman or a mayor. I'm speaking for the Borough
of Chatham as a mayor, not as the New Jersey State League.
Frankly, I don't think you need this bill, or
I don't think we need this bill. You fellows have been in
office for two and a half months now, and I don't think
you have passed very many bills. In the boroughs, citiles,

and also in the counties this 1s golng to cause a great




1 deal of confuslion. They all say that you're slow, we

2 are slow, the counties are slow in getting things done, |
3 and many times the reason we don't get them done is because}
4 we have éome group potshotting over here, another group

5 potshotting over there, and we don't stand on our own

6 two feet. Think of all the people 1n this state and in

7 our communities. We don't do the right thing. We listen

8 to those telephone calls we get saying do this, do that,

9 or those many letters from speclal groups. And, gentlemen,

10})] 1it's going to really slow things up.

11 Mr. Foos, our executive director of the New

12 Jersey League, talked to the executive director of the

13 State of Washington. He said things are in a turmoil

14 out here and we Just aren't getting things accomplished.

15 ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Sir, with reference to your
16 comm?ﬁfxabout slowing things up, would you consider it

17 more 1£portant that we have speed in our public body

18 deliberations, or would you consider it more important

19 that the public be informed in certain circumstances of

20 what their public body--

21 MAYOR DAVIDSON: You have placed a very important
22 word there, '"certain circumstances." Last year a bill

23 was put through by the two bodies on pensions for firemen

24 and police on, we'll sayi?g Wednesday of one week. The

25 || next week it was voted upon, and the following week 1t was
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signed by the Governor. The municipalities or the public
did not have a chance to g8y anything about the

three million dollars 1é‘§ going to cost the people of
this state. They are the things that should bring about
deliberations or jhave deliberations.

ASSE&BLYMAN HAWKINS: But back to the original
gquestion, sir. Then you agree that there should be some
kind of a way that the public might be made aware of what
the public bodies are doing; 1s that correct?

MAYOR DAVIDSON: Yes, I do agme;ﬁigh that.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: But you alégvstated that

there are certain circumstances whereby the meeting should
be private.

MAYOR DAVIDSON: Exactly.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: But I am trying and the
board 1s trying to determine, 1is there any definition that
can be glven or any way of saying this type of meeting
should be private and this type of meeting should be public?

MAYOR DAVIDSON: There is, but you're going to
have to make this bill twice 1its size.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Can you give us some kind
of a hint as to how to do 1it?

MAYOR DAVIDSON: Well, from experience I find--or
let's say we have found in the opertion of the Borough of

Chatham that we can accomplish a great deal by ourselves and

1
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then 1t comes to the public meeting for a vote. Now,
maybe that doesn't happen in every municlpality. Some
people have felt that where there 1s a split party chav
people are being neglected.

Now, even if you have a one party system, which
you have now in the Senate and Assembly, you have the
majority, that's what I should say, you can do as you pleas
as far as voting is concerned. And even if there is
not a split party, I think that our bodles should have
confidence in each other in decidling what 1s best for
every citizen, whether it be the community, the county,
or the state.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Are there any other
questions from the board?

Mr. Bate.

ﬁ’:ﬂ ASSEMBLYMAN WILLIAM J. BATE (Vice-Chairman):
MayoféDavidson, you have come on behalf of the League
of Municipalities today. Is 1t expected there 1s going to
be a statement from the League to supplement your statement
today when the deliberations are completed on A-10307%

MAYOR DAVIDSON: By the Legislative Committee,

I would say yes. |

ASSEMBLYMAN BATE: Do you think it will come

within the next several *eks while the legislature is
X

in session? y
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MAYOR DAVIDSON: They will either meet later

this month or the first partwof'April, if I remember

E N

ASSEMBLYMAN BATE: I gather that you're opposed

correctly.

to this bill in its present form?

MAYOR DAVIDSON: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Mr. Gregorlo.

ASSEMBLYMAN JOHN T. GREGORIO: Mayor, I would
like to ask a few questions in an effort to bring out
some points that I would like to have broughtxbgg as
Mayor of Linden to find out if you would haveiége same
problem with this bill as our city would.

Ycu meet two or three times a month, your
council?

MAYOR DAVIDSON: We meet every Monday night.

ASSEMBLYMAN GREGORIO: Conference session or
public meeting?

MAYOR DAVIDSON: Let me go through it. The first
Mcnday 18 our executlve session to discuss what we are
going to bring up at the regular meeting on the second
Tuesday. The third Wednesday is the Chatham-Madison Joint
Sewer Commission. The fourth one is where we meet with
our department heads, our committee meetings with our
department heads.

ASSEMBLYMAN GREGORIO: Well then, except for the

20



1 dates and whether the conference session 18 Just before the
2 open public meeting, it's almost the same as most small
3 boroughs or small municipalities. Wouldn't you find it

4 almost impossible that the public would have to be excused

5 from the meeting and then invited out because of the fact
6 that in a small city, or perhaps even in large cities,

7 where there are part-time officials that almost everything
8 from a Janitor drinking too much or to discussions on

9 labor relations and who 1is doing a good job and who 1s

10 not doing a good Jjob and whether a certain department
11 || head should be repimanded?

12 I can think of a million things that might be
13 excluded from this bill, although the basic premise of

14 it might be good. But as a mayor I couldn't even suggest

15 how to word this to make 1t workable, and I am trying to
16 || get ydﬁ; as a witness, to practically agree with me.

17 ‘!i MAYOR DAVIDSON: You want me--

18 ASSEMBLYMAN GREGORIO: I'm a sponser of this
19 || p111. I sponsered it just to get it out in the public
20 to have discussions like we are having now.

21 MAYOR DAVIDSON: Nothing to do with the League

22 || again, but this bill is for the birds.

24 MAYOR DAVIDSONi”HWait a minute. You fellows

25 || sitting up there, would*you 1ike me to come to Trenton

23 ASSEMBLYMAN GREGORIO: Thank you, sir. 1
|
|
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everytime you go to Trenton and just tag around with you
all the time? A

ASSEMBLYMAN GREGORIO: We have that now.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: That happens.

MAYOR RAVIDSON: Wait a minute now. You couldn't
talk to Baer, not at all. I would promise, though, like
one group did with Al Mirt, they followed him in the
washroom, that's how they got him.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: It happens, sir. And 1
can tell you that our Jjudlclary meetings a;é!glways open.

Assemblyman Spizziril. i

ASSEMBLYMAN JOHN A. SPIZZIRI: Mayor Davidson,
would the Legislative Committee of the League be in a
position to suggest areas of change and perhaps propose
language of change when they send the report in?

MAYOR DAVIDSON: I would say so.

ASSEMBLYMAN SPIZZIRI: I would ask they do so.

I think it would be helpful to this committee in considering
your comments and other comments with reference to this
bill.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Any other questions?

Assemblyman Karcher.

ASSEMBLYMAN ALAN J. KARCHER: Mayor, I notice

that the first question you had was the definition of a

public body.
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MAYOR DAVIDSON: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: 1In the present law as it
is presently structured with regard to right to know,
here the governor's office is exempt, and also the
Judiciary 1is exempt, because of the fact they have
certain deliberations which are always in private. We
wouldn't ask the appellate division or the supreme court
to deliberate in public, for very good public policy
reasons.

It seems to me that in going through here there
are a lot of other questions you raise wherein the
municipality or an agency of that municipality are in the
same process of fact finding, which is a public function.
I give, for example, the Board of Adjustment, the
Planning Board, the municipality itself with reference
to Bpgxresponsibility of bidders, as you pointed out here,
whe;héb they are qualified or not, the municipalities
with regard to liquor licenses, Jjunkyard applications,
all of which fall into what is a quasi-judicial function,
the finding of facts. And the finding of open facts
and then making a determination on those facts is always
a Jjudicial function, a quasi-judicial function.

Now, do you believe it would be helpful if the
municipality and the difprent branches of it and the

different agencies of 1t were afforded the same protection
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that the Jjudiclary 1s afforded, that 1n deliberation of
a Judlcial or quasi- Judiciai nature would be exempted?
MAYOR DAVIDSON: ah& would say that would be an
advance. But sometimes I wonder why, particularly in this
bill, why the Judiclary 1s exempt. You're going over the
full gamut and also negotliations as far as labor 1s
concerned. I think labor gets more out of the various
small bodies then they would out of a large public body.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: I think you hit the nail

on some of your marks on what you say. The reason why

LA
.7

it should be exempted. For instance, 1t wouldn't be
fair, certalnly, to anyone's interest to debate the
credibility of a witness in public. It wouldn't be fair
for someone to say, Well, I'm voting against it because
I knew that guy was lying. Now, a Judge can do that,
always can, and nobody asks him, Did you believe him or
not belleve him. But what this bill will do is force
councllmen to make that public that they just didn't
believe somebody if they testified. And my suggestion
would be there for that kind of reason, as you point
out here, that should be excluded.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: I can suggest another
reason why it may be excluded. We are separate and
coequal branches of government, and I don't know whether

it's constitutional for us and the legislature to tell the

24
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governor's office or the judiciary how to run their own
meetings. That's the question in my mind.

MAYOR DAVIDSON: I'm glad I made you think.

~ ASSEMBLYMAN JOHN P. DOYLE: Not to be argumentatis
but to find facts. DoﬂI understand you to say that the
only way that the public governing body in our municipalitie
1s going to avoid the potshots is to meet in private and
to continue the private workshop meetings they have?

MAYOR DAVIDSON: Well, this 1is the age of
complaint. Everybody complains. Your wife complains about
the high grocery bills and because the car isn't running,
and all of your constituents complain. But the ma jority
of the people are not complaining. Think of that.

Now, we just passed--this is a little sidelight--
on Mondayvevening, including schools of the county, a |
$4,§9Q1900.00 budget. At the end of the meeting I said,
Howwméﬁy reporters are here, and there were four or five
reporters, and there were three other people in the room,

a woman from the League of Women Voters and two other
spectators. Nw, you must be doing something right, or

we must be doing something right. You have to do things
that the majority of your constituents believe that are
right. That's the point I'm trying to get over here today,
and you don't need this g'ﬁng.

ASSEMBLYMAN DbYﬂE: Do I understand you to say

5
£

; | :
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that you would prefer no bill passed, personally?

MAYOR DAVIDSON:,, Personally

ASSEMBLYMAN DggiE And you think the way local
government, by and large, 1s operating, as I understand
it, one private meeting for every public meeting fairly
services the public needs?

MAYOR DAVIDSON: Exactly. There 1s another
sidelight. The bill that is before the legislature about
disclosure, there are only three groups that want
disclosure: the opposite party, your neigﬁbgfs, and the
newspapers. And remember that when that co;;s up, those
three words, or three statements.,

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: In other words, you take 1t
to mean that the majority of the people have confidence
in government and that's expressed by not coming to
meetings, so that the meetings should not have to be open
to them, anyway?

MAYOR DAVIDSON: Exactly. And don't be afraid
of not being elected. I have Jjust as many friends
Democrats as I have Republicans.

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: You mention the chance
meeting in the barber shops. The Act says, "'Meeting'
means and includes any gathering attended by, or open to,

all of the members of a public body, held with the intent,

on the part of the members of the body, to discuss or act

-~ N
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upon public business." I don't think that would take
care of a chance barber shop meeting at which all or less
than all of the members of the governing body are invited
to.

MAYOR DAVIDSON: I forget what your bill says
there, but--

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: Not my bill. I'm Jjust
trying to find the facts, sir.

MAYOR DAVIDSON: If two people make a declsion,
you have a chance of goling to court if the other members
or the public object to it. That's my understanding
of it.

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: Do you think maybe the
people sit home because they don't think it's been worth
goling to because the declsions have already been made
in eg%gate?

"'\ ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Is that a possibility?

MAYOR DAVIDSON: You disappoint me.

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: Sir, I'm just trying to find
the facts. I'm not concerned with making you happy or
disappointing you. I do not raise the question because
I necessarily feel that way, but I think we should develop
a full record for the consideration of the bill.

MAYOR DAVIDSON;*I agree with you. Take all the
g

facts. Let's stand on @hat remark--
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ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: It wasn't a remark. It was

a question,. "

MAYOR DAVIDSON:a‘&OU have heard that it doesn't
do any good, you go in a meeting and raise so much hell
and they're going to start thinking, gentlemen.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Are there any other
questions? If not, thank you very much, sir.

MAYOR DAVIDSON: Thank you, gentlemen. It's been
a pleasure. Sorry to take so long, but I think you have
some of my thinking and you have in printing;téf League's
thinking. And all I say to you is stand on ;Eﬁf own two
feet, make your own decisions for everybody, not special
groups. This bill is for special groups.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Doctor Wharton,
representing the New Jersey School Boards Association.

DOCTOR RICHARD G, WHARTON: Gentlemen, I wish
to thank this committee for providing the opportunity for
the New Jersey School Boards Association to address itself
to A-1030.

My name 1is Dr. Richard Wharton, and I am
representing the New Jersey School Boards Association. The
school board as a public body is very much concerned about
A-1030.

I would 1like to state, Mr. Chairman, that the

New Jersey School Boards Association is in agreement that




1 all action must be taken in open public session. 1In

2 addition, the Association realizes that Watergate has

3 caused basic questions to arise within the public's

mind as to the legitimacy of the actions taken by the
public officials; that 1s, the image of smoke-filled rooms
or corporate board rooms where decisions are made far

from public serutiny.

® 9 & 0 b

However, A-1030, as currently written, does not

O

clearly delineate to areas of concern, that is, the public‘':
10 right to know how public decisions are arrived at and

11 the public body's right to protect public interest through
12 || the mechanism of confidentiality. To make this issue

13 more valid, let me initially pose three concrete questions
14 faced by the Board of Education.

15 The first question: May a Board of Education

16 binq,¢%§elf and 1ts staff to secrecy in the handling of

17 grievéﬁces against school personnel, or does the public

18 have/the right to know of all complaints made against

19 school personnel?

20 The second question: May the board and the

21 teachers' association make a binding agreement that all

22 || progress on negotiations be kept confidential until the

23 || final contract has been agreed on?

24 My third quest%’%: Is the public entitled to

25 |lhear all discussions peftéining to a child? Does the

¥
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public, for example, have the right to hear all the detalled

findings of a child-study tegm at an open meeting?

According to ourdyhterpretation of A-1030, it
would appear that the answers to the above -mentioned
questions would be as follows:

The answer to question 1. According to Section
6B (3), page 4, the public would be excluded from
personnel matters. However, the aggrieved party has the
right to request a public hearing whether or not the
public body desires a public hearing. It islﬁuificient
to note that records containing or constitutigg privileged
matters should not be open to public view, unless the
privilege 1s walved by all parties entitled thereto.

The privilege accorded to all parties 1s a legal mechanism
to guarantee equlty in a Judicial process.

In addition, a board of education quite often
functions as a grand Jjury, for example, tenure hearings.
As a grand Jjury, the board of education listens to the
statement of charges and rules whether or not the
statement of charges 1s valid and should be brought before
the Commissioner. During this period of time, the
discussions concerning the grievance and statement of
charges are not to be public knowledge. A-1030 would

wipe out completely this grand jury function and the legal

need to protect the rights of all parties concerned during

30



1 the Jjudicial parocess since the aggrieved party has the

2 right to request a public hearing.

3 At this time I would like to say that my

4 cohort haé arrived on the scene, gentlemen. This is

5 Mr. Octavius T. Reid, Director of the Governmental Relatlions
6 Department for the New Jersey School Boards.

7 In answer to the second question, the collective
8 bargaining agreement process, outlined in A-1030, is

9 already protected as to its confidentiality under 10:4-4,
10 In addition, any final decislion on collective bargaining

11 agreement must be taken at a public meeting under 10:4-3,
12 and within the educational statutes, 18A:10-6.

13 Some individuals may state that the public

14 decision is a formal rerun of a prior informal arrangement.
15 And I know that some of you are concerned about this. The
16 Assog&gtion's answer to this belief is that there exists

17 withinkéhe body of existing laws court decisions which

18 protect against this abuse. For example, in Kramer v. Board

19 of Adjustment, Sea Girt, 80 N.J. Super. 454, the court

20 stated in its holding: "A resolution recommending the

21 | granting of a zoning varliance was vold for failure to

22 comply with right to know law, where vote of the board of
23 ad justment was taken at an executive meeting in absence
24 || of the public and a form:J‘}erun of the board's vote four

25 months later in public did not constitute compliance with thd

¥
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statute."

sociation recognizes the intent

1

Although the A?
of A-1030 to specify af*haspects of public policy, existing
statutes and/or court decisions protect the public's right
to know.

vIn answer to the third question. As with question
number 1, records containing or constituting privileged
matters should not be open to public view, unless the
privilege 1is waived by all parties concerned. Even then
it should be done within the limits of re#sos.

In order to understand more fulii[the 1mplicatibns
of A-1030 and its effects upon pupil records, I would like
to address myself to the following question: the parents
of a student enjoy a preferred or privileged position as to
the disclosure of information regarding their child's
physical, mental and emotional development; but should
this privileged position be extended to the general
public?

N.J.S.A. 18A:36-19 provides the following: "Public
inspection of puplil records may be permitted and any other
information relating to the pupils or former pupils of
any school district may be furnished in accordance with
rules prescribed by the state board, and no liability shall

attach to any member, officer or employee of any board of

education permitting or furnishing the same accordingly."
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The above quotation requires us to look into the
rules and regulations promulgated by the State Board of
Education and the Department of Education.

Part V of the Rules and Regulations of the
Svate Board of Education outlines ecertain general rules
concerning the inspection of school records. Sections 1
and 2 provide that pupil records '"may" in the board's
discrecion be open to inspection by persons who "in-che
Judgement of the board of education have a legitimate
interesv in che records...”" Section 4 likewise provides
that information in the records of a given pupil "may"
be furnished upon request to employers and institutions of
higher learning for purposes of employment or admission
to such institutions. By using the word "may," the
State Board has left it to the discretion of the local
boargfiq all of these cases to detgrmine to what extent
theffééords shall be made available for the purposes
indicated.

By contrast, Section 3 of Part V of the State
Board Regulations sets forth an apparently mandatory
provision with respect to inspection of records by a
parent or guardian. The section reads:

"Items of information contained in the records

of a given pupil shall besggde available, upon request,

for inspection by a parent, guardian or other person having
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custody and control of the child, or authorized representat]}
of the same, provided, thatggfter the pupil has attained
the age of twenty-one yearj, the items of information shall
be made avallable for inspection by the pupil or his
authorized representative, and not to the parent or
guardian."

However, despite the use of the word "shall"
in Section 3, that section must be read together with
Section 5 of the same rules, which reads as follows:

"Nothing in these rules and regulat;bng contained
shall be construed to prohibit the board of edﬁ;ation,
or any officer or employee of the board designated by the
board, to withhold items of information which, in the
Judgement of the said board, or its designated officer or
employee, are of a confidential nature or in which the
applicant for such 1nformation has no legitimate interest."

Sections 3 and 5 taken together would appear to
put us right back where we started: the board can withhold
items of information which, in its judgement, are of a
confidential nature or are of no legitimate concern to the
applicant! At the same time, the Judgement or discretion
of the board must be exercised within the limits of reason.
As a general principle, then, indlvidual pupil records are
deemed confidential, the board having the right to disclose

them only to persons having a special interest in them.

34
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A-1030 would not only do away with the privileged
status of a parent or guardian but would also circumvent
the board's ability from making public "sensitive" pupil
records. This would be accomplished by the individual
concerned requested in writing public disclosure of
confidential records.

Some individuals may state that A-1030 provides
the privileged status of a parent or guardian and the
‘individual has waived this right through his request for
public disclosure. But then, gentlemen, the question
becomes, in our minds, does a parent or guardiah have this
right of waiver? The Assoclation belleves that a parent
or guardlan does not have this right of waiver for the
following reasons:

First, individual right is being equated with

’l

the ﬁ%giic right. For example, gfadewide test scores and
distriétwide composite test scores would appear proper
concerns for the public at large. They may have a bearing
on the effectiveness of the educétion program and the
quality of the teaching in the particular class or throughou
the district. But an individual student's test scores are
the legitimate interest of the parent and should not become

Secondly, recog:; of the pupil's character

]

development would likewise be within the parent's right to

public knowledge.

P
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3
1 know for the same reasons as given with respect to the |
2 pupil 's academic performance This kind of information
3 should not be divulged puiilcly for the protection of the
4 child's reputation and on the theory that he should be
5 constantly "growing up'" and that any misconduct during
6 the process should not be held against him. And I would
7 like you gentlemen to look at the case that came before
8 the Commissioner, and you notice that they refer to
9 the person as E. E. v. Ocean Township Board of Education,

10 decided March 9, 1971, in which the Commissioner directed
11 that no notation of a pupll's discipline 1nf;§giions
12 should be placed on his permanent record. And thils was
13 for his protection. Now, if the parent says he wants to
14 wailve that right, it would become automatically public
15 records.

16 Third, many boards now keep numerous technical
17 records of examinations and tests for various types of
18 'physical, mental and emotional disorders or handicaps
19 from the general public for the following reasons:

20 (a) Much of the material would be incomprehensiblle
21 to the average layman and might serve only to alarm or

22 confuse the general public;

23 (b) Often the material gathered in such tests

24 needs to be interpreted by qualified psychologists, etc.,

25 and the interpretation may be all important in the diagnosis

J
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and treatment of the child;

(¢) What the parent really needs is not to
necessarily examine the details of tests and reports given
by professionals, which may often be either blunt or even
offensive to the parent, but rather the considered concluslo
and recommendations, presented to the parent in such a way
as to best secure the cooperation of the family in the
attempt to overcome disorder or handicaps. For all these
reasons, it seems well within the prerogative of the board
to limit rather strictly the disclosure of records in this
area.

Thus far, I have addressed myself to the broad
concepts of the public's right-to-know and the public body's
right to confidentiality in certaln instances. I have
also stated the difficulties faced by boards of education
if Azigjp were to become law.

; "1 At this point, gentlemen, I would llke to point
out certain technical deficlencies which would drastically
affect the legal interpretation of A-1030,. I am glad
to hear that the committee has found some of the technical
difficulties, and I will go through them, and I realilze
that some ot them, in all likelihood, will be a repeat
of some of the findings of thlis committee. So I would
ask your 1indulgence as 1 %?Fthrough the technical

i

deficlencies. y
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The technical deficlencies perceived by us are

as follows: ;*\

(1) Page 2, line 13, "clearly endangered':

What does this phrase mean? When 1is the public interest
"clearly endangered"? Who decides that the public interest
is "clearly endangered"? This negulous term would certainly
have to be eventually decided by the courts.

(2) Page 2, line 10, "all meetings of public
bodles": Does this mean all committees and subcommittees
of public bodles? Let us assume that it @ogﬁ. With
boards of education, the individual commitéges function
as 1nvestigatory bodies, for example, school construction,
school budget. These committees cannot take action except
to recommend to the entire board of education eertain
action to be taken based upon the facts gathered by them.
Under this phrase within A-1030 these committees could
concelvably have to be open to the public's scrutiny. This
may affect the investigatory effectiveness of the committees
if all of their meetings are public regardless of whether
or not a decision 1s made. And under 18A all board meetings
are open. A board cannot make the decision unless it has
a full quorum. Subcommittees and committees like in the
legislature can only make recommendations. So if you're

opening the committee's meeting, what is this doing? You

may say that it's giving initial input. But under 184
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input can be given to the boards of educatior at the public
meetings.

The third deficiency. Page 2, lines 21 through
23, "preﬁaring agenda': This provision would mean public
attendance at the preparation of a board's agenda by the
President, Vice-President and Superintendent. This function
of agenda preparation 1s tc give some sort of cohesion
to the public meeting. In addition, there 1is always a
segment of the board meetings at which the public is able
to address itself to items which are not on the agenda.
More importantly, the question inherent in the preparing
of an agenda is whether or not the public body, duly
elected or appointed representatives of the public, is
empowered to prepare an agend? It would appear from page

2, lines 21 through 23, that the public body does not have

this a%ght.

k The fourth deficiency. Page 2, subsection E,
"adequate notice": Currently, boards of education are
required by 18A:10-6 to give adequate notice, and I quote:

"The board of education shall cause notice of
such public hearing and the statement annexed to the budget
to be published at least once in at least one newspaper
published in the district and if no newspaper be published
therein, then at least on;,%ewspaper circulating 1n‘said

2

district not less than séven days prior to the date fixed
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for such public hearing."

Reading furtherién in 18A:22-13:

"On the date a* at the time and place, so fixed,
the board of school estimate or the board of education,
as the case may be, shall hold such public hearing at
which the taxpayers and other interested persons shall have
an opportunity to present objections and to be heard with
respect to said budget and the amounts of money necessary
to be appropriated and the various items and purposes for

which the same are to be appropriated for the use of the

+F

public shcools in the district for the ensuiﬁg school yeaf."

A-1030 would reduplicate many of the current
provisions within N.J.S.A. 18A. But more importantly,
under Section 4B, page 3--meeting without notice--lack of
adequate notice carries a disorderly person's penalty.

The questions which immedlately come to my mind are: Who

decides that substantial harm has been done to the public

through lack of adequate notice? And who decides that the
public body has acted in such manner to be penallzed? The
Superlor Court or the public body?

The fifth technical deficiency. Page 5, line 1,
"shall be void": Under 10:4-5 official actions are
voidable based upon proceeding in the Superior Court. By

stating in A-1030 that official actions shall be void, it

means that all actions, without Superior Court proceedings,

4C



1 are null. Thus, a public body could conceivably not have
2 a legal standing before the Superior Court. Furthermore,
3 what happens to contracts? Or where 1s the statute of
limitations?

There are other technical deficlencles within
A-1030, and I know that you have addressed yourselves

to them, and I would like to point out in passing very

® =N & »u »H

quickly some of them. Page 2, lines 27 through 31: Are

the proceedings of the New Jersey School Boards Association

e

10 Workshop considered discussions by public bodles which

11 the public must attend? Or page 4, line 1, which refers

12 to subsection C which does not exist in A-1030.

13 I would 1like to thank you very much for being

14 so patient listening to my statement, and I would like to

15 conclude with thls remark: I would like to state that the
16 New {Spiey School Boards Association opposes A-1030 for the
17 reasén83énumerated in my statement. To quickly review them,
18 the points are: .
19 (1) A-1030, as currently written, does not

20 clearly delineate the public's right to know and the public

21 body's right to protect public interest through the

22 mechanism of confidentiality.

23 (2) Records containing or constituting privileged

24 || matters should not be ope‘gto public view, unless the
il
25 privilege is walved by a}l‘parties entitled thereto. A-1030

g
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does not make this provision. Irrepairable damage could
be done to reputationsyqﬁd futures of persons who may
be the subjJect of prij¥*éged records.

(3) N.J.S.A. 18A already provides the public's
right to know. A-1030 would either be a reduplication
or in confldct with N.J.S.A. 18A in many instances.

(4) The term "void" circumvents the right of
any individual or group of individuals to a day in court.

In addition, the on-golng operations could be hampered.

Rather than opening the system to publicxségytiny, making

P

1ts declisions accountable to the public, it may happen
that there may be no decisions which, in turn, makes
the system non-operational.

Mr. Chairman, I wish to thank you and the
committee members for providing me with the opportunity
to present our concerns on A-1030. It would appear,
in my humble opinion, that chapter 173 of the laws of 19360,
which A-1030 1is attempting to amend or do completely
away with, and the new assembly rules are working effectivel
If not, I don't think we could have presented our testimony
here today. Thank you again.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Dr. Wharton, I thank you
very, very much for a well prepared presentation.

I have a question. Is 1t your personal obinion

that there 1s a problem with that fourth summation, the

N
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term "voild"?

DR. WHARTON: According to our legal department,
there 1s a difference. Not being a lawyer, I can't tell
you the difference. But they sald there was a difference
between the word "void" and "voidable."

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: That's very correct. But
I'm trying to determine if there is a problem presented by
that difference.

DR. WHARTON: Well, according to our legal
department, yes, there 1s. Because according to them--

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: What 1s the problem?

DR. WHARTON: Because by stating it is void, that
means the action 1s dead, completely.

MR, OCTAVIUS T. REID: There is no chance for
appeal within the courts.

,f’f\ DR. WHARTON: There is no chance for appeal within
the cou;ts.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: I am not entirely sure that'
correct.

I can glve you an example.. We have in our law
a provision that states a marriage between two parties relate
in a certain manner, for instance, a mother and a son, 1is
termed to be void, and that's void from the beginning. And
we have in our law provisﬁoh that a marriage between a party

that's already married aﬁd another person is void, but yet

4
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that doesn't say that can't’go into a court and have it
declared void. And thatgdoesn't say that that court
declsion can't be appegggd.

DR, WHARTON: True. But perhaps the reason that
the examples you gave me may be applicable is because
through custogaand usage the type of relationship where
a person marries someone who 18 a relative is automatically
considered to be vold as if not having taken place, because
the contract could never have been done based upon the
historical usage in this relationship. J

Within this law, which 1s a 1ittie more nebulous,
where there is no clearly defined guidelines by which you
are able to tie on to see whether something is void or
voldable, we like to use the term voidable so that perhaps
actually the law can be made better through court
proceedings.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: But 1s it a possibility
that Just by using the terminology voidable that we are
giving the courts the discretion that we may not want to
give them?

MR. REID: By saying voidable, you're suggesting
that both parties would have to raise the issues and the
1ssue would have to be decided on its merits, the onus is

on them, the action 1is wiped out.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: But is there a problem in




1 placing the onus on--

2 MR. REID: It would seem in a contractual

3 situation that would be a very difficult problem. If one
4 assumes that there is the possibility of an inadvertent

5 action rather than a deliberate action by a public body

6 in an attempt to bypass its right to public view of 1its

7 actions, and through some technicality and procedure finds

8 its actions voided, in which case it has to go through

9 a court proceeding, but at the same time has to continue
10 and get obligations for payments, say, on a construction
11 contract, then during the course of the time that it's

12 trylng to get a determination as to whether or not its

13 actions are voild, it's also violative of another statute
14 which says it's not honored in the contract. So it could
15 be sitting in that precarious kind of ground in complying

16 with gngvlaw being 1in violation of another. That would

17 || be our doncern there.
18 ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Any other questions?
19 ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: You mentioned, and I think

20 very rightly, the areas of grievancgs and the children,

21 which may well be deserved exceptions. There are a number
22 of other things that a board does, whether they apply or
23 accept for federal program, use of school buildings for

24 other people, curriculum, g‘%t to name a few examples.

25 || Would you not think that 5—1030 would serve a useful purpose

¥
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insofar as those items are concerned?
MR. REID: Yeé, 1t would.
i

DR. WHARTON;{“Yes, it would, right.

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: And is not your experience
that most boards of education hold one private hearing
for one public meeting?

MR. REID: We sometimes hold three and four
meetings for one public meeting.

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: Hasn't the final decision
been arrived at as far as the boards are concerned by the

L
time you come to public meeting? -

MR. REID: Very practically in some cases, yes;
in some cases, no. This varies across the state with
various boards. Usually, what goes on during the course
of a conference meeting is an attempt to explore the facts,
finding out what you want to do and making a determination
as to whether or not it goes on the agenda.

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: Most areas cited in your
very able statement, do you think that the presence of
members of the public at those kinds of discussions would
harm those discussions or inhibit them?

MR. REID: No, I do not. I think some
individuals would feel inhibited, but I think it would be

to the public's best interest to have it that way.

I think we should, perhaps, clarify that while
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saying that we oppose 1t--that was Dick's last statement--
for the reasons enumerated, that's the same thing as
saylng that we support the intent of the bill. But there
are someAparticular provisions 1n 1t that present
difficulties, and once those are taken care of I don't
think we are 1in disagreement with what you're attempting
to do.

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: 1In the collective bargaining
process, you say the exlsting law provides that that would
stay closed and the proposed law doesn't add much. Let me
take you back one step further. I don't think that the
board's position 1n collective bargaining really 1is raised
that their budget workshop meetings by the amount of
money they put in the instructional accounts.

MR. REID: Yes, it is.

.W*tx ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: Shouldn't that be closed for
thedpfﬁtection of the board for the--

MR. REID: Yes, we believe that. That would be

the same thing. Both the boards and bargaining units usuall

agree to 1t for the sake of protection, anyway. But the
boards would be in the position of exposing what they have
as avallable resources and then having to sit down with the
negotiating units and saying, This is what we are willing
to offer, when they have;‘%d the perfect opportunity to

see what your ultimate offer would be. And that certainly
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changes the balance there.

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: You raised a good point about

X

the statute of 11mitation& The rules of court provide
that most public acts, if you're going to challenge them
by sult in lleu of prerogative writ, you have to commence
that suit withinWMS days. Would that be an appropriate
limitation if that were made applicable to voiding meetings
for not complying with this law?

MR. REID: I think that would be reasonable.

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Assemblyman €odey.

ASSEMBLYMAN RICHARD JAMES CODEY: Dr. Wharton,
on the first page of your statement you state about the
public's right to know and the right of privacy. Are they
in conflict in this bill, as far as you're concerned?

DR. WHARTON: 1In certain instances, yes. That's
why we were addressing ourselves to the concrete questions
at the beginning, dealing with aggrieved parties, dealing
with pupil records, and so forth; that if this could be
cleaned up, I think that what would happen is that there
would not be a conflict between the public's right to know
and the need for the public's right of confidentiality
in certaln instances.

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: It seems to me throughout the

case that the right to know and the right to confidentiality

48



1|l are in conflict. You mention about grievances and about
2 || school personnel. As it stands now, grievance against
3 any person employed by the board of education, are those
grievances now a matter of public record?

DR. WHARTON: In many instances.

Maybe Mr. Reid could answer better, since he lis
our board president and has dealt with these things.

MR. REID: The grievances in themselves are, but

O 0 3 S 0 b

the contents of them are not. During the proceeding of the
10 boards or its administrative staff and the teacher filing
11 the grievance, those proceedings are not public, and for
12 good reason.
13 | ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: Would you envision, say,
14 someone making a complaint against an employee knowing that
15 maybe the complaint is not justified, but 1if it were open
16 that gpgﬁperson making the complaint against the board
17 that 1tiﬁould embarrass him and harm his prestige or his
18 position?
19 MR. REID: I should think for any individual,
20 if any one of us wanted to personalize, that 1f we were
21 being faced with an accusation that Qas totally unfounded
22 that the fear of embarrassment would certalinly be a lot
23 less than the desire to exonerate yourself. Remember, also,
24 when you go through the heg'ﬁng procedures they're

I\

25 || automatically public records once they reach the commission
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hearing, so that you can have your day in court then.

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEYi: What determines whether
they reach the Commissiongphﬁr not?

MR. REID: Whether or not the party filing the
grievance is satisfied with the findings.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: Conversely of that, the
board of education under the present law--and I notice
you use the analogy to a grand Jury--if the board of

education feels it's necessary to either discipline a

teacher or to discipline a custodial employee, et cetera,

i
4

once again, those hearings before the board 6fveducation
are only of the first instance and they must be referred
to the Commissioner for ultimate determination; isn't
that correct?

MR. REID: That's assuming the individual wants
to pursue 1t that far.

See, in effect what happens, while the board
is disciplining that teacher, they're actually doing it
on the basis of administrative recommendation. Their
administrative staff made an evaluation. That teacher
would not be aware of the fact that the boérd has not
heard thelr side of the story. So when a board holds
a hearing, it's saying we acted on the basls of our

chief executive officer's recommendation, but if you wish

to come in here, tell us your side of the story directly,

50
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we would be willing to do that. At that point if they are
dissatisfied they can pursue it through the Commissioner.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: I have been involved in
litigaﬁion on this point, and my understanding was that,
for instance, a teacher, in a hypothetical, or a custodial
employee, drunk and disorderly, or something, the board
would like to have him ten days off, unpaid. The board
cannot do that by itselt under the present law; isn't that
correct? The board can have a hearing and refer those
cha.ges to the Commissioner of Education, right?

MR. REID: Right.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: 1In that instance, the
employee would have nothing to say about it. It would not
be at his discretion.

DR. WHARTON: That's right.

yff‘a ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: And in that proceeding the
boérd\éf education is functioning as a grand Jury.

DR. WHARTON: Correct.

MR. REID: We are talking about two distinct
categories. One would be one that affects the tenure status
of an individual, which would be reduction, suspension,
dismissal, or decertification; the other has to do with the
whole concept of administrative charges, which are handled
at an administrative level .

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: I'm talking about a larger

).
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picture, which would either affect a custodian's rights of
tenure or a teacher. k;

MR. REID: Rigﬁb.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: And the individual employee
has no discretion of whether those charges will be sent
to the Commissigner of Education or not.

MR. REID: In effect, neither dbes the board,
because once it has the obligation, it has the obligation
to certify the charges and then have 1t heard.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: The hearing would be public.

&
T

Whereas, as it presently functions you actuéily do function
as a grand jury and it's a privileged hearing; isn't that
correct?

Mﬁ. REID: That's right, in the determination as
to whether or not to certify the charges.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: Under this present proposed
1egislatioﬁ there 1s another quasi-judicial function
becoming public.

MR. REID: Except that the final vote 1s done in
public.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: 1I'm talking about the
deliberatlions, as to whether in fact probable cause exists.

.MR. REID: But I would raise a serious question
as to whether or not you want that discuSsion to be public.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: I raise the same question.




C 0 N o 0 &

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

MR. REID: It seems to me--I am not that familiar
with the present grand Jjury system, but while they are
hearing evidence to determine whether or not they should
hand down an indictment, 1if it is public at that point it
seems to me that you then prejudice the case of the
individual, and that's something we would be concerned
about. It seems to me the newspapers refer to it as
pretrial publicity, and you would be trying the person
by innuendo without giving them the opportunity to present
the other side, and we would be opposed to that.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: 1Isn't it a fact that news
frequently leaks to the press that someone has been
indicted?

MR. REID: There is a big difference between news
leaking to the press and an official body saylng, Here is
the ez}dgnce and we are looking to see if 1t is sufficient
causefta?certify charges to be heard by a hearing officer.
There 1s a lot more weight to that than some innuendo or
passing rumor. Why should we jeopardize anyone until they
have had the right to defend themselves.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Any dther questions?

Hearing none, I wish to thank both of you
gentlemen very much.

DR. WHARTON: Yo‘me quite welcome, sir.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Mr. Raymond A. Hayser,
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Director of Law of Dover Townshig.

RAYMOND A. HAYSER: 'Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I understand thaﬂ‘éssembly Bill 1030 has
ramifications on all levels of government with the State
of New Jersey. But as Director of Law of Dover Township,
Ocean County, New Jersey, and as an attorney who has
previously served fhree municipalities of the State of
New Jersey, I will 1limit my remarks to the possible effect
of this bill as it 1s written upon municipal operations
and, particularly, the township that I represent this
morning, Dover Township; [

I would like to present to the committee and
ask that it be included in the record a certified copy
of a resolution adopted by the township committee at its
regular meeting this past Tuesday, March 12. It is a
resolution opposing the adoption, authorizing the township
attorney to oppose the Public Meetings ‘Act as presently
written, and I stress as presently written. I ask that this
be included in the record.

The Township Committee has requested me to
amplify for this Committee the considerations expressed
in 1ts resolution of March 12, 1974. 1In this regard, the
Township Committee wishes to make the following points
concerning its objections to the present wording of

Assembly Bill No. 1030:
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1. It recognizes and supports the fundamental
right of public meetings with adequate notice to the
public. The public has both a right and responsibility,

both of which many people rarely consider, unlike many

private interest groups, to influence governmental processes,

and decision making.

2. There may be legitimate circumstances for the
convening of "emergency' public meetings, in order to meet
the sometimes unknown and unpredictable immediate needs
of a functioning government, but safeguards as proposed
in Sections 4b and 5b of the proposed bills are compatible.

3. There 18 a need to assure, as this proposed
bill does in part, to subject autonomous agencies, boards
and bodies to the same requirement of public meetings,
which though such a requirement should be readily apparent
heret%pdge, practice often proves different in the
acti#itiés of autonomous agepncies.

4. The Township Committee supports the public's
right to know and have full recourse to information as to
public meetings, only during which pyoceedings the public
will and the public pocketbook can be bound, in regard
to making available public meetings agenda, minutes and
certifled coples of ordinances and resolutions.

5. The Townshipgugmmittee recognizes the

respons;bflities of adhering to the provisjons of the Local
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Public Contracts Law of New Jerséy, R.S. 40A:11-1 et seq.,
and the Local Lands and Build;ggs Law of New Jersey,
R.S. 40A:12-1 et seq., partfgklarly as to the requirements
of public advertlsement, especlally as to the awarding of
"emergency" and "professional services” contracts, areas
which I would suggest to this committee may not be
considered today, but it might be appropriate to consider
guldelines and regulations and further study in this area
since it seems to be an area of growing controversy, the
areas of emergency meetings and the area of proféiaional
service contracts and how they are awarded. J

6. Finally, the committee realizes the fact that
a governing body that 1s secretlve, abusive or unwilling to
permit proper public participation in governmental processes
will not be a governing body that governs long, with the
right of a taxpayer to seek legal redress through the courts,
in the time and manner provided by statute and court rules,
and the less individually costly but potentially and recently
more devastating processes of law enforcement investigation
and public elections and recall petitions, aided by‘civic
minded groups and a responsive press.

Having said all these things, the Township CommittJe
must raise certain questions concerning the language and
Intent of proposed Assembly Bill No. 1030: one philosophicall

one practical, and one legal.
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Philosophically, as already indicated, the
Township Committee has no quarrel with the public's right
to attend and participate in a "public meeting." However,
the 1ntent of the proposed Assembly bill appears obvious
from the following excerpt of 1ts attached statement:

"The public's right to know the true source of
governmental decisions and to witness in full detail the
process of public policy formulation 1s frequently obstruct
by the inability of members of the public and the press
to attend certain policy-making sessions of public bodies.
This bill would put the conduct of public business on an
entirely open basis by requiring all discussions and
decisions of public bodies, including those now held or
made in 'executlve sessions,' to take place at meetings
open to the public and for which adequate notice has been

givenrfs\

-
!

We belleve that the language of thls proposed
Assembly bill was born out of the frustrations of current
events which have seen government processes corrupted by
secret transactions and informal traqsactions, and the
growing distance and feeling of impotence between
individual citizens and those governmental entities, in
which citizens have neither trust nor confidence.

However, might n%!gthis proposed Assembly bill be

an overreaction to a serlous problem and be as potentlally,

A1
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if not more so, dangerous to the public interests? That 1s
to say, may there not be a_ ;eal value to 'executive
sessions" and caucuses of‘%he governing body, particularly
on the municipal level?

Many of the members of this Judiciary Committee
have served in the legislative or executive branches of
municipal government, 1nclﬁd1ng the following:

1. Assemblyman William J. Bate, Clifton council-
man, during 1966-69;

2. Assemblywoman Gertrude Berman, Long Branch

L
councilwoman and council president, during 1§69—74;

3. Assemblyman Richard James Codey, Orange
Board of AdJjustment and Shade Tree Commission;

4, Assemblyman John T Gregorio, Linden Mayor and
councilman, during 1964-T4;

5. Assemblyman Eldridge Hawkins, East Orange
assistant city counsel, with whom I served; and

6. Assemblyman John A. Spizziri, Wyckoff Township
Committee member and mayor, during 1366-72.

Simply stated, based upon individual experilences,
each of you can and should appreciate the value and
necessity for informal dlscussions to air views and
compromise competing viewpoints, free of the concern to

maintain rigid and demagogic views for press or public

consumption, in order that government can continue to

58
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function without the fabric of society being needlessly torn

by the inability to reach a consensus.

This does not mean that declsions should be and
can be made in private meetings with no recourse to the
public will. Rather, 1t is clearly the law 1in New Jersey
that official decisions of a municipal governing body
can only be made at public meetings with the public right
to be heard. In this regard, please see R.S. 10:4-1 et seq.
R.S. 40:49-1 et seq. An understanding reached at a
caucus is nothing more than a gentlemen's agreement as to
how an official might vote at a subsequent public meeting
of the local governing body. This citation appears in

Brazer v. Borough of Mountainside, 102 N.J. Super. Lgt.

Of course, no one is foolish enough to believe
that minimal conformity with the public meetings require-
ment 2£3§he proposed Assembly Bill will assure full
disciﬁédre and avold private dealing anymore than minimal
and superficial conformity with bidding procedures
under the Local Public Contracts Law of New Jersey will
guard against unscrupulous circumvention of awarding

public contracts.

There is an obvious intent in some of the
language of this proposed Assembly Bill which evidences
an attitude that strikes #ffthe very heart of a

’ i

re presentative government; and one that 1 take great
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exceptlion to, and that 1is that wé simply can't trust our

elected offlcials, whether wefsubscribe to the delegate
Y

or agency theory of governmdbi, and must constantly look

over the collective shoulders of our elected officlals.

Carried to an absurdity, we do not have representative

government. -

While this may be an interesting populist
theory, in the real world the abillity to caucus and reach
compromises and settlement can serve to further rather
than negate responsible government actvion.

It 1s true that Section 6(b) of A-lOéé’Zutlines
some areas and 1ssues not requiring public involvement,
but the Township Committee would prefer to see some
language in this bill recognizing the validity of the
caucus and executive session for discussion purposes,
recognlizing that no official act by a governing body
may be taken at same.

There 1s a practical problem to the administration
of this bili, and that 18 how you separate the public
as distinet from the non-public business as provided in
Sections 3(c¢) and 6(b) of the proposed Assembly Bill,
so that as a practical matter you can plan public and
non-public sessions or meetings or parts thereof of a

governing body to comply with this proposed legislation.

I know that as a practical matter agendas contain varied

_ S S—

60




1 and distinct items and are prepared at meetings, caucuses
2 or conferences where public and non-public and

3 confidential matters are discussed in unison, since there
are only so many meetings that cen be scheduled in a
glven day, week or month with adequate preparation. I
can foresee having to give a legal opinion to each
elected official on each item that may be even suggested

or inferred at a meeting for even future consideration.

O & 3 & 0 b

Really, the result might be a paralysis of governmental
10 action. |

11 In this regard, nothing aids the innate

12 development of fear and paralysis in an elected official
13 trying to do his job, and who may not be trained in the
14 law, than the penal aspect of this bill coupled with

15 some generalized definitions. In this regard, the following
16 sectigp;kof the proposed Assembly Bill must be considered
17 by th; clommittee:

18 Section 9: "Any person who knowingly participates
19 in a meeting of a public body of which he is a member,
20 not held in accordance with the provisions of this Act,
21 1s a disorderly person."

22 Section 3 b.: "'Meeting' means and includes
23 any gathering attended by, or open to, all of the members
24 of a public body, held wit%’ﬁhe intent, on the part of

25 the members of the body, to discuss or act upon public

¥
7

| / '
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business."” ’

Section 3 ¢.: “‘?ublic business' means and
includes all matters actea upon or discussed by a public
body which relate in any way; directly or indirectly, to
the performance of its functions or the conduct of its
business." ‘%

Section 3 d.: "'Act upon or discuss' means
and includes the discussion and voting upon motions,
resolutions, rules, regulations, policies, ordinances
and statutes; discussion as to whether or not apy of the
same shall be adopted or acted upon or placedion the
agenda of the public body for pres=nt or future action;
discussion or action pertaining to the procedures to be
followed by the public body in conducting any meeting,
or any hearing in a hold or propose to hold, or the
procedure to be followed by it with respect to any matter
coming before it; discussions which relate in any way to
the taking or not taking of any public body or any of its
agents, employees, committees or agencies; and discussions
or actions which relate in any way to the governmental
functions for which the public body was established."

In this regard, the central issue becomes, from
a legal and penal standpoint, what constitutes a "meeting"
which the public could or should be invited to attend?

Can an informal discussion by elected officials at a social
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event of any governmental or political matter, which if
you ask them to refrain from is like asking many nct

to breathe, be considered something which the public nas
a right to participate in, and if not, why not?

The Township Committee 1s of the opinion that
the provisions of R.S. 10:4-3, making it a misdemeanor
for any public official to bar the public from public
meetlings, and not caucuses, where the public business may
only be acted upon, 1s sufficient protection for the public'
right to be informed, coupled with the citizen's right to
resort to judicial redress--and in this regard Section 7b
and 8 of the proposed bill deal in a manner in which it
is presently--and the electoral process, which 1s the
ultimate 1n dealing with a non-responsive and secretive
governing body.

f,fx It is further proposed that Section T7a be amended
as féliéws, in line with existing case law:

"Any action taken by a public body at a public
meeting which doeg not conform with the provisions of this
Act shall be void."

As to the ability of the ﬁiess to be informed,

I have never met an elected official who ever was shy about
discussing the public business, even following a caucus
where the magic words weragﬁpoken by the chairman, "Please,

)
let's not let this discussion go beyond this room until we
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have our public méeting."

The Township Commiftee asks that you consider
the adoption of A-1030 ver§ carefully and whether in
its present form it really helps local government .

+If I might be able to.expand upon these remarks.
Two éomments that .were made by members of the committee
this morning, really in the form of questions, and one
was: I think the chairman asked for a point of distinguish]

between a public and a private meeting. I would say, if I

was to give a definition of that on my own, the grivate‘

¢

meeting 1s the caucuses and they should femain’closed
unless the governing body in its discretion for informationa
or other‘purposes wishes to invite and include members of
the public, since no official acts by a municipal

governing body can be made at a caucus. The public

meeting 1s where the public has a right to participate.

I would support guidelines and restrictions on the type

and form of notice thét has to be given to the public

and the right to participate by the public.in these
meetings, so that we don't have the sham, as I have seen.
And I can give you an example. I have said I have sefved
in four municipalities and I have seen agendas prepared
for meetings and I have seen agendas where they might 1list
on it award for listing professional service contract. Of

course, the resolution isn't included, and you have no way

64
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of knowling whether it's an award of a professional service
contract for $2,000.00 or for $50,000.00 or who it is
awarded to or to what official.

~So we would seriously consider, and it would be
advised by guldelines and conslderations and requirements,
as to the type of notice and the type of procedure that
has to be followed at public hearings so that the public
does have a right to know fully what is happening, aﬁd
secondly, the right to influence 1t at the sessions.

I have never served in a municipality where there
has not been a vocal and active public interest shown
at the meetings, and I dare say that it's been a rare
experience to see debate when there has been sufficient
interest 1n a matter cut off indiscriminately by the
governing otficlals.

o I want to thank the committee for allowing me

to mékééthese remarks this morning.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Thank you.

Any questions?

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: Just for the record, I think
Mr. Gallo serves as president of the‘Hoboken City Council;
and Mr. Karcher has municipal experience, and his father
before him.

MR. HAYSER: My \;‘furces stand corrected, and I

3%

apologize to both gentlemen;
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ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: Mr. Doyle is township

attorney in Brick Township.

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYL%‘EYou Say, as some wiltnesses
have saild, that you support the right of public information
and the public to know what is going on, but not the
language of this bill. I really question whether the
Township Committeéi—and I have had a discussion at length
of this bill with your mayor, taking differing positions
to some degree--really means that.

Let me digress a little bit. The resolution that
was adopted by the Township Committee in Dover,,#as that
authorized at one of these workshop meetings?

MR. HAYSER: This resolution was authorized at
a conference committee. The committee met twice a month
in public session and twice a month in conference to plan
its agenda. It was reviewed by the committee itself.
Coples of it were forwarded to me before my appointment.
It was then brought up at a public meeting, which was
discussed by the public and the Tcwnship Committee at the
meeting before it was adopted. That is correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: So there was some discussion
on this resolution at a public meeting. |

MR. HAYSER: VYes.
ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: You say all that happens 1is

at a caucus meeting is a gentleman's agreement.
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MR. HAYSER: I don't say that. Case law says
that.

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: 1Isn't it often the case
that a public body will have a workshop meeting, and at
that workshop meeting ask the attorney for his opinion
of a suggested type of ordinance; and he furnishes the
body with that opinion. And based upon the opinion, they,
therefore, ask him at a second private session to draft
an ordlinance, which they at the next public meeting pass
on first reading at which there is no public discussion
and, thus, commission it to be advertised--

MR. HAYSER: Can I interrupt one point there.
You have probably attended meetings of the Dover Township
Committee. They discuss everything at every meeting. It's
the most wide open meeting--

{,:RASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: I don't address myself to

Dover,ﬁahﬁ I appreciate the way that that municipality
is well-run. I'm talking about the overall picture.
You sald you have served in several other municipalities.

MR. HAYSER: I have, including the City of Jersey
City. And I would say even there there was quite spirited
discussion even on first reading of an ordinance.

All municipalities, as a matter of course, have a
session of the meeting reségiéd at the conclusion of the

meeting, the public can spéak on anything they want to. Then
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there has to be, as you know, a publication 1in the

newspapers, and then there i§:a second meeting and then

a reading, which is precedé‘kby a public hearing.
ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: Now that the public hearing

is at the second meeting, but before that the public

never had an opportunity to see it but for the first

reading and then they don't have‘the opportunity to discuss

it, an opinion, the ordinance, the first reading, publicatig

in the paper, all of which 1s the commission, certailn

public funds. But the public never participated before

: ¥
*

those declsions were made.

MR. HAYSER: You wouldn't suggest that we not
publish it and go to the‘expense?

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: No. I'm suggesting that they
did not get to participate or to see which people thought
that such an ordinance perhaps should have been drafted
so as to work any will upon them.

MR. HAYSER: My experience has been that rarely,
unless 1it's a pro forma ordinance, has an ordinance gone
through in the matter of Just simply a flat where there
has been no discussion over a period of months by the
community, by the officials, both elected and appointed;
and secondly, many times it's been my experlence that
ordinances have been amended after the first reading or

at the time of the second reading and adoption; thirdly,

68
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I'm sure this committee, as every legislative committee,
also gets an opinion of its attorneys, and with so many
attorneys on the Judiclary Committee it doesn't need
separate counsel as to the validity of a course of action
wiich you have chosen.

What I have suggested is that an 1ssue may
never get before the public to be aired unless we have
some orderly process in which we can bring it up for
consideration. I have raised, beyond a legal issue here,
certain practical problems which I don't think the
committee can ignore, and there are real practical problems
in implementing something as this. A serious one I see
1s among the growing attitude of the very responsible
public officials almost an innate feeling that unless they
have a legal opinion they're going to subject themselves
to 1qg;gfment, this type of thing, damages. I know it's
trlté té say, well, philosophically we are inclined to
the bill, we believe in its intent. That's not the case
here. We strongly urge the adoption of the provisions to
safeguard the right of the public, and we also consider
emergency meetings many times. So we are not opposed to
the public's right to know, but we are concerned with
18 that the aspects of this bill will be so0 interpreted

that 1t will have a detridﬂntal effect on the particular
M

official who will be afraid to act or that i1t will open a
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caucus session in the type of disorganization that we can
never properly get the public business before the public
for their consideration. & |

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: You mention that in Dover
they have very spirited discussions. You don't'feel that
at the public meeting the five fownship committee persons
are inhibited by zhe'bresénce:of the bublic, do you?

MR.‘HAYSERt At the publiébmeetings, no, not at
all. o » |

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: You think they would be
inhibited? I don't mean just those five. ’
MR.'HAYSER: Ygs. In my general experience 1

have served in the City of Jersey City, East Orange, City

of Bayonne before coming to Dovef Township. As I said,

T

g thergﬁareﬁbﬁijﬁéo?mﬁhﬁfﬁéf&iﬁ§§7§5u"bah schedule. If you

‘have én agenda meéting thére are‘goibg to be ien different
things to come in, teh’different areas. It might be a
disciplinary métter,‘for egampie, Others will be public.
Unless yoﬁ're going to ﬁaﬁe rotating doors moving the people
in and out, they are going to be--you're going to rotate
rooms and go from one room to another, there is g0ing to be
a certain innhibition to the free discussion.

The other danger 1is that you may have 8 particular
official who might wish to grandstand, but who you can get

in a room and point out to him what are the detriments if ne
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continues the course of action that he is suggesting. But
1f you have him before his constituents and before

cameras and he is standing on the chair yelling and
screaming; you don't accomplish anything for the use of
the municipality.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: With all deference to

the prior witnesses, you're the first who has appeared who
is an attorney-at-law, and I want to get into a subject
away perhaps from the practicality which you're talking
about, which I agree with. I think it's a matter which

as Assemblyman Codey was touching upon before with regard
to the conflict between the right of privacy and the right
to know. Maybe going at the right of privacy Just a step
further, and I would like your professional opinion as

a counselor, do you have any troubles with this particular
prOpos?dfiegislation with regard to the First Amendment?
Does it é;tually violate the freedom of association that's
guaranteed to us by making it a crime to assoclate or

make 1t a disorderly persons offense to assocliate with znothd
gentleman who happens to be a councilman? Does it prohibit
unconstitutionally your freedom of speech, your freedom of
press, the right to express something or to hand a document
to another member of the council?

'MR. HAYSER: I wijﬂfsay this, whether it does or

doesn't 1in reality 1is 1mmatér1al. It produces that fear in

r
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a chilling effect. The Dombrowski Rule, as we Know it,
if it produces that effect-- .

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHEﬂﬁk You think this would?

MR. HAYSER: Gentlemen, this bill already has
in certain municipalities produced a chilling effect. You
must realize that municlipal government is not the playground
of lawyers, necessarily. We are talking about laymen,
responsible laymen from a variety of vocations who are not
familiar with the intricacies of law, and I can say to
them all I want, I don't see any circumstances that I can
imagine that you're going to be subject to the pﬁﬁZI
provision. But I can't say to them that they are not
absolutely, and that's what they want to know.

ASSEMBLYMAN SPIZZIRI: Mr. Hayser, do you feel
at the present time under the present body of law there is
sufficient protection to the public interest in guarding
against a vote taken in camera by a public body?

MR. HAYSER: I feel there 1is, except for the
areas that I have outlined about perhaps 1n review of the
guidelines on emergency meetings and the requirements of
form of public notice that has to be given. I think there
is sufficient protection. I think the questlon becomes at
what cost that protection exists. Many times 1t's not
so much that the protection doesn't exist, but that a

particular citizen and citizens in general are not willing
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to avail themselves to the protection that exilsts.

ASSEMBLYMAN SPIZZIRI: Do you feel that, in line
with Assemblyman Doyle's questioning, perhaps the
statute on the introduction and passage of ordinance
should be provided at which a public vote would be taken
80 a3 to glve the governing body the opportunity to digest
the public comments and to perhaps amend the ordinance
for a third reading, realizing, of course, that this would
slow down the legislative process of a governing body?

MR. HAYSER: I want to say that personally I
have no obJection with the theme of what you have sald.

Let me give you a practical problem. We have
a ridiculous, I think, statute on the books under the
Local Lands and Bulldings Law, which says that if we are
going to sell our land or lease it we do 1t by resolution,
but 1£,w¢ are going to purchase 1t we do 1t by ordinance.

" . ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Ts that a statute, sir?

MR. HAYSER: That appears in the Local Lands and
Bulldings Law, R.S. 40:A-12.1, et seq.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: If you have any suggestion
for amendment of statutes, feel free to tell us.

MR. HAYSER: At anytime a township wishes to
purchase land 1t must be published, which is not a
legislative ordinance. Iﬁ’p’not going to appear in any

M

code books, a second meetibg, and now if you propose to me
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a third meeting on‘something like that, then where do we
go? Real estate transactions: We have to move them
very fast. :ég

I am not implying there isn't a public right to
know. But we have to review what we require by ordinance
and what we requiri by resolution.

ASSEMBLYMAN SPIZZIRI: There 1s a third area
which I'd 1like to question you on, which nobody else has
touched upon.

I have recelved two letters, one from the Village
of Ridgewood, and one from the Village of Ridgéw“cid attorney
In one of the letters it refers to an effect that this
bill might have on the advisory board's commission and
committees. Let me read you that point and ask you for
your comment.

"Some very valuable work is-rendered to municipal
government by unselfish, unpald persons, who are willing
to devote time, talents, and energy to governmehtal
service. If they are unable to conslder ideas and proposals
with those whom they must deal in an uninhibited atmosphere,
they are unlikely to continue service."

Would you care to comment on that?

MR. HAYSER: I think that is a very true remark.

I have already had some readings and indications from

governmeut officials I have spoken to in my area whose

T4
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positions as governing otficials 1s not full-time, who
receive minimal conpensation, but who put 1n perhaps
maximum time, more so than the compensation they receive,
that it reaches a point, perhaps, 1is it worth it. I am
not saying about the public right to know is it worth

it, I'm saying.

Someone made the point, one of the assemblyman
earlier, do you want to have caucuses so that you can
avoid potshots. With all due deference to the Senate and
Assembly of the State of New Jersey, the average citizen
has complaints, he sooner goes to his councilman rather
than to hls senator or assemblyman. The average citizen
does not know who his senator or assemblyman is.

The fact that they are being immunized is an
absurdity, because they get on the phone at 2:30 in the
morningfapd thelr wife and kids are yelling, they're
going'tégget it.

ASSEMBLYMAN SPIZZIRI: I think we have all

experienced that.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Mr. Hayser, I want to thank

you very much. We have benefitted much by your visit.
MR. HAYSER: 1 appreciate the opportunity to
be heard this morning.

(A short recess g!% taken.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: We are going to resume the
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hearing now. Prior to the break we were going to hear
from Mr. Lewls Ripps, Legislative Affairs Chailrman of the
New Jersey Common Cause. ;Qé

MR. LEWIS S. RIPPS: Thank you very much, Mr.
Hawkins.

I have distributed copies of a statement. 1
don't know whethe; Mr. Hawkins has them.

Gentlemen, my name 1s Lewls Ripps. I reside
in Bayonne, New Jersey.

I am appearing here today as Leglslative
Affairs Chairman of New Jersey Common Cause andf%epresent
more than 13,500 New Jersey members of Oommon Cause.

Although Common Cause has been in the forefront
of government reform throughout the United States and
has established as one of its goals the enactment of open
public meetings legislation in the various states and in
the federal government, we are very pleased to note that
the legislation we are discussing here today originated
with Assemblyman Baer on his own initlative, rather than
as a result of the lobbying efforst of Common Cause.

New Jersey Common Cause would like to compliment

the drafters and sponsers of Assembly Bill No. A-1030.

We enthusiastically support the bill's statement of purpose.

We belleve it 1s essential to the malntenance

of a democratic society that public business be performed in
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an open and public manner and that the citizens of our
soclety should have an opportunity to be aware of all

the considerations that led to the decisions made by
public officials. New Jersey Common Cause will support
adoption of A-1030 but would like to suggest that éome of
the following comments be incorporated in an amendment
form of this bill:

1. We would assume that the "public body"
defined in this Act includes all those bodies that are
required by state statute to perform a governmental
functlion at a public meeting. By that I mean, for example,
on an ordinance or resolution, the granting of a variance,
the granting of subdivisions, whatever actions must be
affected at a public meeting. Common Cause would define
the public body as being exclusive to those particular
areaiﬁq‘We would not expect, of course, that the chance
meeting%éf the mayor coming out of a telephone booth with
a member of the Sanitation Department is a meeting of a
public body, nor would their discussions in a mayor's office
or in the office of any member of any level of government
be considered a meeting of the public body as far as
Common Cause is concerned.

Common Cause suggests that the definition of

"meeting” mean the convenM® of a quorum of the
L

constituent membership oﬁia"public body, whether corporal
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or by méans of electronic equipment, to discuss or act
upon a matter over which that public body has Jjurisdiction,
and, of course, must act eﬁéﬁtually at some public meeting.
A "quorum" would be defined as that number of
members of a public body that are necessary to give that
body's actions the force or effect of law. For example,
1f four members constitute a quorum of a city council
those matters which must ultimately be acted upon by the
councll at a public meeting cannot be considered, discussed,
deliberated, or acted upon at any private meeting of any
four members of the city council. Of course,”wé%;ouldn't
like to permit in this particular instance any two or
three member meetings to be held simply to subvert the
intent of this Act and give the councilmen an opportunity
to discuss and agree upon things privately. Other examples
would be such meetings as planning boards, boards of
adjustment, the PUC, for example,which sets rates which
must be set at public meetings. I think the public has
the right to hear the deliberations of all of these bodies
of government to detefmine why the particular agencies of
government reached a decision that it did come to.
2. This Act should also provide that the Public
meetlngs referred to herein shall be held in such pPlace or
places that are accessible to the public. There is no

provision in the Act for making these public meetings
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accessible. Wﬁen sites are selected for such public
meetings, the public body shall have in mind the
convenience of the public in gaining access to the public
meeting and the provision of adequate room for the public
to congregate.

Quite often I have been in attendance at public
meetings where there wasn't sufficient room for the public
to congregate. I think those provislions ought to be
incorporated in the Act. I think the meetings should
be conducted at places that are accessible by publiec
transportation facilities and that the public should have
an opportunity to gain access at its convenlence to the
publlic meetings.

3. Common Cause would also include in the
definition of "public business" all matters leading up
to fig@lxaction taken by a public body at a public meeting
includihh even the piacing on the agenda of matters
to be considered by the publie body.

Sometimes you find out a lot in the minds of the
people, members of the public body, as to their thoughts
on a particular 1ssue at an agenda session. We would slso
like to know how 1t gets placed on the agends, and we would
also like to find out why certain matters do not come to the

public attention. ;‘w

4, With respect to A-1030's exceptions to the
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requirement of providing "adequate notice," Common Cause
suggests. that subparagraph (4)a and (4)b of paragraph 4b
be deleted in its entiret;ﬁé Section (4)a would allow
the public body to conduct a meeting even though it could
not have reasonally foreseen the need for such meeting
at a time when adequate notice could have been provided.

Public‘%odies are already permitted in this
Act to deal with matters of urgency and importance without
notice 1f such delay for the purpose of providing adequate
notice would result in substantial harm to the public
interest. If the matter 1is not of such urgenéyﬁ;nd
importance, there 1s no reason to tolerate conduet of
meetings of public bodies wlthout adequate nofice when
such adequate notice can really be provided if the meeting
were just held at a somewhat later date.

Section (4)b would permit a public body to
conduct a meeting although it could have foreseen the
need for such meeting at a time when adequate notice could
have been provided, but nevertheless failled to do so.
Such an exception is contrary to the Basic concept of
requiring public notice. For this reason, Section (4)(a)
and (4)(v) of paragraph 5b should also be exorcised
from the bill.

5. A-1030 characterizes the conduct of any

person who knowingly participates in a meeting of a public
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body of which he is a member and not held in accordance

with the provisions in this Act as a disorderly person.

Common Cause questions whether or not this bill ought

to set forth penalties or fines for such a disorderly act.

Common Cause wonders where the enforcemert procedure is

in this Act, who will enforce the provisions of this Act.

We believe, of course, that in matters dealing with

state agencies, the attorney general ought to enforce

provislions of the Act. Matters dealing an the county

level, maybe the county prosecutor's office ought to have
the opportunity of enforcing provisions of this Act.

6. Common Cause would also like to suggest that
the Assembly incorporate into this bill a requirement that
public bodies covered by this Act shall keep written
minutes of all of their meetings. Such minutes should
1nclud§,&but need not be limited to, the following:
;aﬁ\The date, time, and place of the meeting;
B. The members of the public body recorded as either

present or absent;

C. The substance of all matters proposed, discussed,
or decided, and a record by individual member, of
any votes taken; and

D. Any other informmation that any members of the

public body requeq'p be included or reflected in
N

the minutes, inc@ﬁding a record, by individual




member, of any vote.

The minutes shall be public record and shall be

available within a reasonageg time after the meeting.

All or any part of a meeting of a public body

may be recorded by any person in attendance by means of

a tape recorder or any other means of sonic reproduction

provided that in so recording there is no active interferend

with the conduct of the meeting.

7. Common Cause would define "adequate notice"

in the following manner:

A.

5
&

All public bodies shall give written p;blic notice
of their regular meetings at the beginning of
each calendar year. The notice shall include the
dates, times, and places of such meetings.
All public bodies shall give supplemental written
public notice of any regular, special, or re-
scheduled meeting, no later than 72 hours before
the meeting. The notice shall include the
agenda, date, time, and place of the meeting.
Written public notice shall include, but need
not be limited to:
(1) Posting a copy of the notice at the
principal office of the public body
holding the meeting, or if no such

office exists, at the building in which

e
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the meeting 1s to be held, and in at
least three other prominent places
within the governmental unit; and

(2) Mailing a copy of thé notice to any
person who or newspaper which requests
notice of such meetings; any such
person or newspaper shall be given

notice of all special or rescheduled
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meetings in the same manner as is

10 given to members of the public body.
11 8. Section Ta and Tb and Section 8 provide an
12 opportunity for members of the public to seek relief

13 for failure of public bodies to act in accordance with

14 provisions of this Act. Common Cause believes that the
15 Act ought to provide that successful private litigants

16 acting~imder the appropriate sections of this Act shall

17 have tﬁéir legal fees fully paid by the public body whose

18 decisions or actlions they have successfully challenged.
19 I would 1like to add a couple of additional
20 comments. I have been listening to some of the testimony

21 Introduced today by public offiecials, and I have always
22 had the feeling, and I still have the feeling after
23 listening to some of these public officials speak today,

24 that elected officials reéggé public office ~as their

25 private domain. I think ﬁhey're wrong. The office is
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always iIn the domain of the public. The only way to keep
it that way 1s to give the public the accessibility
to the decision-making pro%éés of public bodies.

Somebody suggested that, gee whiz, nobody 1is
complalning about what we are doing because very few people
come to public meetings. I think one of the reasons why
few people come tdépublic meetings 1s because they are not
aware of the deliberations and they think that the conduct
of public meetings 1s a closed kind of corporation, that
the decisions have beem made in some private caucus or
some private conference meeting. But I don't thf%k that
the Gallup Poll shares the same confidence in government
that seems to be displayed by the Mayor of Chatham Borough,
because tﬁe Gallup Poll shows that the lack of confidence
in government 1s prevalent among the people of the
United States. I think it clearly contradicts the Mayor
of Chatham's point of view.

The Mayor of Chatham pointed out that he doesn't
feel personally that this committee needs this bill, and
he doesn't feel that he needs the bill. He 1is, I guess,
speaking as an elected public official. I am inclined to
agree with him that elected officials don't need this bil1l.
However, the bill is not to serve the pleasure of the
elected officials. The public needs th}s bill. We think

you ought to have that in mind when you conslder it and
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make recommendations to the full assembly for final
conslideration and adoption.

Common Cause would like to thank you for this
opportunity to present 1ts point of view to you today.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: I have a statement to make.
We are goling to break promptly at one o'cloek, if not
before, for lunch and return promptly at two. Prior to
breaking for lunch, there are several people that have
expressed interest in giving testimony. We are going to
do our best.

The next person to give testimony will be the
sponser of the blll, Assemblyman Baer. So I would ask
those who are speaking, and the members of this committee,
to keep their questions and comments concise, brief, and
to the point so that we can get as much done as possible
prior BQ the lunch hour.

o Are there any questions of Mr. Ripps?

Mr. Codey.

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: Mr. Ripps, with regard to
your testimony that was given before, do you feel now
that local government meeting in caﬁcus is doing things
that are detrimental to the public interest in that
caucus?

MR. RIPPS: q![ can't say that they are doing

things that are necessarily detrimental to the public's
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interest, nor can I say that they are serving the public's

interest by continulng to meet and deliberate 1in private

Wt

caucus. am

3

I have had the opportunity to meet 1in caucus
with both the City Council of the City of Bayonne and the
Board of Education of the City of Bayonne. I think some
of the reasonshwhj;they reach a particular point of view
in regard to speciflic leglslation or specific items on
their agenda really has nothing to do with the item that
they are considering. It may be a questlion of personalilty
or some other personal consideration, and I thifik to that
extent the interest of the public is certainly disserved
by the private meetings.

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: I serve as a member of the

Board of Adjustment in the City of Orange. We hear a case.

We go into caucus and discuss that case, and at that
caucus each member basically gives what their feelings
are concerning the case. I certainly want the feelings
of my fellow members of that board as to what they feel
about the case we have Jjust heard.

I definitely feel that if we were sitting
publicly on this matter, deliberating it, that those men
would not come to me with their true feelings, for a lot
of reasons. Some may feel when they give me an opinion

against it as to why they might feel harassed by a certain
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member of the public who has spoken against it and the
public might say, Well, you tried to influence Mr. Ccdey
or somebody else in voting against 1t along with you, and
that comeé to my mind. I'd like to know your opinion
about that.

MR. RIPPS: T {eel thils way about it. If any
member of the Board of Adjustment who has the courage of
conviction with respect to a particular matter that's
before the Board of AdJustment, he certainly ought to
have that same courage before the public as he has in
private.

The thing I am concerned about 1s that too often
in boards of adjustment caucuses perhaps you get the
attitude again of personality, whether or not there are
certain political pressures that are brought to bear that
are d;ﬁgﬁssed in caucus but are never discussed before the
public,l;nd I think all of these kinds of things, all the
personalities should be left out of it. But all the
legitimate reasons for deciding a case that's heard by the
Board of Adjustment, or a planning board on a subdivision,

all the legitimate reasons can certainly be discussed

before the public. It's the illegitimate, not the legitimatg

reasons that have no basis in fact or law that are discussed

in private caucus that morg often than not affect the

decislon-making process tﬁat would be eliminated if that

>
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matter were discussed before the public, and that's what
we ought to do. *

ASSEMBLYMAN conﬂ: If someone wanted to exert
pressure on me, a fellow board member, to vote a certain
way on that matter, 1f he can't do it at a caucus he will
do it some other time.

MR. RIPPS: There 1s no way of stopping that.
When you meet 1in caucus saying these people want 1t done
this way, all right, or the mayor is opposedlto this,
or 1n my particular community there is a large refinery,
Exxon Corporation, they don't want this or theyﬁho want
this, you have to go along with them. After all, they
have a lot of clout, et cetera. Those are not legitimate
reasons for passing or granting a variance or granting
a subdivision, or what have you. I think that kind of
deliberation will be kept out of the public meetings.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Any other questions?

Mr. Spizziri.

ASSEMBLYMAN SPIZZIRI: Mr. Ripps, I'm not aware
of your background, but could you tell me have you ever
served on a public body?

MR. RIPPS: No, sir.

ASSEMBLYMAN SPIZZIR: In your remarks a vhought
came to me. Would your remarks then include in common

practice now of the Senate ana the General Assembly of holdi
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conterence meetings among their members?

MR. RIPPS: Well, I personally view the
conduct of the Assembly and the Senate as a different
matter. IAthink this ought to be established by permanent
rules that are established by both houses. And, of course,
as Mr. Doyle well knows, hecause it was testified before
his committee, Common Cause is in favor of open meetings
of committees of the Assembly and certainly of the Senate.

ASSEMBLY SPIZZIRI: I'm not talking about
committee meetings. I'm talking about conference meetings.

MR. RIPPS: What do you mean by a conference
meeting?

ASSEMBLYMAN SPIZZIRI: Where the Democratic
majority or the Republican minority would hold a conference
meeting whigh would discuss--

f’JEMR. RIPPS: We are opposed to holding party
caucusesT

ASSEMBLYMAN SPIZZIRI: You are?

MR. RIPPS: Yes, sir, party caucuses.

ASSEMBLYMAN SPIZZIRI: You referred to decision-
making process, and we are talking about the Board of
AdJustment, personalities that may enter into it, in making
that decision. Wouldn't that same problem remain in the
public portion of the meetié!% although perhaps it might

not be discussed, but that T may want to vote against a
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particular application, for example, because I don't like
the way the man parts his hair or the applicant parts

his hair. So I am prejudiﬂhg in that respect against him,

but I am not golng to say it in public. So I'm going to say

MR. RIPPS: Right now when they discuss it in
private and a member of the Board of Adjustment or any
public body is chailenged, How did you come to reach this
decision? And their response 1is, Listen, we discussed
that fully in caucus.

ASSEMBLYMAN SPIZZIRI: That's not exactly true,
because with the Board of Adjustment, any findiﬁigby the
Board of Adjustment must, by law, be documented in fact,
whether it's a favorable or unfavorable decision.

MR. RIPPS: But they don't tell you how they
reach the decision.

ASSEMBLYMAN SPIZZIRI: They find it on the basis
of facts, that's how they reach thelr decision.

MR. RIPPS: I wish I could agree with you. As
someone who has attended 50 Board of Adjustment meetings
in the last ten years, I can't agree with you.

ASSEMBLYMAN SPIZZIRI: That happens to be a law,
and that's a fact.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: May I ask that we not have

colloquy between two individuals, and let's just get

information at this time. We are pressed for time.

L
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ASSEMBLYMAN SPIZZIRI: My final question has to
do with the awareness of the public.

Isn't there an obligation on the part of the
public to seek out the information and make themselves
aware of what is going on? 1Isn't 1t a two way street?

MR.@RIPPS: It's definitely a two way street.

One of the responsibilities of the public is to participate
in the process of government, and our argument has always
been, and my argument personally has been, that the public
steps out of the voting booth and thinks that they have
done their part in the democratlc process and they havé
exercised all the privileges afforded to them. But the
public too often forgets their responsibilities, and the
day after the vote 1s taken the general public goes home
and forgets about 1t. But the people elected to office,
lobby'gfqups, common cause, for example, don't forget about
it. |

ASSEMBLYMAN SPIZZIRI: How would A-1030 obviate
that?

MR. RIPPS: I think A-1030 would attract the
public to the meetings. The public would become more aware
of what 1s going on, more aware of deliberations. The
public would see more information printed in the media
as to the deliberations of;!Evernment and the processes

of governmment, and 1 thinu;they willl become more interested




in 1t.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Assemblyman Karcher.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARC&‘é: To go back for a second
to the example given by Mr. Codey. When he does gO with
his fellow members into deliberations, goés into the
decision-making process, that is a quasi-judiclal function,
If that 1is open, Qﬁat 1s to say that the courts should not
be open, the appellate division, the supreme court should
not be open? Or would Common Cause support requiring the
supreme court to open their deliberations to the publlic?

MR. RIPPS: Well, I think you have ansWered 1t
there. It's not a purely Judicial function.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: The only reason it's
quasi-Jjudicial. That doesn't answer it at all, because
the only reason it's quasi-judicial is because it's taking
place by administrative agencies. But the function they
are performing at that moment in the decision-making
process is 100 per cent judicial in nature. It's because
it's being done by an administrative agency that has other
functions that Jt's a quasi-judicial board. But when they
hear testimony, |delliberate and make a dgcision—-by the
way, the law off this state does say that every decision,
whether made by municipality, planning board, board of
adjustment, must be buttressed by the findings of facts,

and if those findings of facts do not appear, the reviewing
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court does one of two things: eilther grants what 1s being
asked for or refers it back for further findings of fact.
They won't consider it without a record.

‘A1l I'm asking is in that function is it
precisely and exactly the same thing that the appellate
division does? Is it the decision-making process of those
gentlemen that can be affected? The Chief Justice might
not like people with long hair or mustaches, you don't

know.

MR, RIPPS: Well, there 1s a difference, because
an affirmative decision made by a Board of Adjustment has
to be affirmed, which 1is a legislative body and not--

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: That's not true.

MR. RIPPS: But in certain instances it does
have to be affirmed.

| f,f} ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: One out of four.
‘i MR. RIPPS: You're talking about special
exceptions.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: Specilal use exceptions.

MR. RIPPS: I don't view it as a Jjudicial
function, and we would not suggest 1it.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: What you view and what the
court views are two different matters.

What is your feé?ghg about the First Amendment?

Do you have any trouble with the First Amendment with




regard to this bill?

MR. RIPPS: No, not with regard to the bill,
not with the correctlions w“iave suggested.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Mr. Gregorio.

ASSEMBLYMAN GREGORIO: On page 5, sir, "Successful
private litigants acting under the appropriate sections
of this Act shallehave their legal fees fully paid by the
public body whose decisions or actions they have
successfully challenged.

My question 1is an unsuccessful litigation.
Would these private litigants pay the legal féeégif they
are unsuccessful?

MR. RIPPS: I think they should be required to.

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: You mentioned the Gallup Poll.
That was not what New Jerseyans think of local New Jersey
officlials, was 1t?

MR. RIPPS: No. It was throughout the United
States.

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: Do you think there is a
wide unhappiness amongst the people of this state with the
gquality of their local government?

MR. RIPPS: I don't say there 1s. I say there is
a lack of confldence in government on a national level.

After all, I think the Governor ran on a platform which

suggested the same sort of thing. He said that people lackefl
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confidence in government. Everybody that runs for office
as a challenger always says that the people who are 1n
government don't have the confidence of the public, that's
why they're running in obposition to them. Maybe the
Governor was right.

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: We are not here to reelect
the Governor. We are here talking about this bill.

In 70 to 80 municipalities of this state there
is the Faulkner Act, which allows for recall provisions.
It's my understanding that notwithstanding the number of
municipalities that have it, only maybe a dozen do not,
wouldn't that suggest to you that there 1s a wilder
confidence in local governing body members than your
statement might suggest?

MR. RIPPS: No, it certainly doesn't.

#,f{ ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: Why not?
| !; MR. RIPPS: Because Common Cause has always sald
that everybody is organized but the people, and I think
that's the particular case here. I think most of these
things are done, in a matter of recent months, anyway,
recent years. I have seen recalls in Hudson County seeking
the recall of somebody else, one political party wishing to
displace another political party. I don't think the public
is organized well enough ﬁ”mring about effective recalls

M

of government officials.‘JThe public is disorganized.
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ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: This proposal encompasses
exceptions. Do you think those exceptions should be in
there? &

MR. RIPPS: All éf the exceptions, except the
ones we have noted, yes, should be in there.

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: Do you think all employment
matters, hiring, firing, administrative matters should be
nonpublic?

MR. RIPPS: I think they should, yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: In a number of governing
bodies the awards of certaln licenses, particqlgyly
liquor licenses, do you think they should be céntinued
to be private or should they be made public, too?

MR. RIPPS: I see no reason why they shouldn't
be made public.

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: You mentioned emergency
meetings. Don't you think there should be some provision
without notice? |

MR. RIPPS: I didn't say they shouldn't. I said
the Act provides in other areas and sets guldelines for
the conducting of emergency meetings. The only thing
I'm saying is that subparagraph 4a and subparagraph 4p
seems to controvert everything else. It seems UO provide

an out which has already been provided 1in other’sections

of the Act.
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ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: Do you think if this Act
were enacted people would come to workshop meetings anymore
than they do now to the public body meetings, which is
rather limited? If you get one per cent, I find, of
a municipality it's a heck of a lot.

MR. RIPPS: I can't say that more people are
golng to come, but I can say I think it's going to restore
some confidence in government. Gee whiz, if these people
are willing to do those things in public, what they're doing
has certainly got to be above board. Not only will it
restore confidence on the part of the public, but I think
that the elected officials or the people who hold these
positions will have some confidence in the public. I get
the feeling that the elected official and the appoinfed
officlals, the people involved in government, distrust the

.
s

publicf They don't think the public has got the ability
to si§ 1h at some of these meetings or take an interest
in what their government is doing, and I think they're
wrong. I think the public does want to participate,
to hear what 1s going on.

I wish I had as much confidence that the public
officials want to trust the public as much as the public

wants to trust its public officials.
ASSEMBLYMAN DOYI* I this bill were put through,
X

do you think even a small fraction of the 567 municipalities
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that this state has would be any/different?

MR. RIPPS: Yes, I think a small fraction might
have been different, yes. y

ASSEMBLYMAN HAW‘&&S: Any other questions?

ASSEMBLYMAN SPIZZIRI: Mr. Ripps, the bills gives
an exception to the Governor's office. Do you feel that
the Governor and phe cabinet should be excluded from
public scrutiny? And if so, why?

MR. RIPPS: No, I don't feel they should be
excluded from public scrutiny. But if you note the
definition we give, it by and large excludes 1t§from
scrutiny under the terms of this Act because ;é.are
talking about actions taken by public bodies which must
be taken at some public meeting 'in order to have the
force and effect of law. We're not talking about
administrative details, about the head of the Sanitation
Department meeting with the sanitation employees and
setting the schedule of hours and telling them how they
are to work.

ASSEMBLYMAN SPIZZIRI: Doesn't the confidence
that this bill seeks to restore in publlic officials, in
public bodies, also go to the Governor's oftfice and the
cabinet?

Mir. RIPPS: It certainly does.

ASSEMBLYMAN SPIZZIRI: Why should they be
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excluded, then?

MR. RIPPS: I think we are talking again about
two different things. I don't want to repeat myself.
Maybe it the Governor is taking certain actions, I would
say actions would have the same force and effect. The
public should pe aware of those particular actions. But
I think right now the legislature 1is equipped to scrutinize
the actions of the administrative offices of the
government.

ASSEMBLYMAN SPIZZIRI: How about policy-making
decisions which affect the public interest of all the
residents of this state by the cabinet and the Governor?

MR. RIPPS: Then we are not only talking about--
we are talking about policy-making decisions at every
executive level of government. We shouldn't limit our-
selveifppithe Governor and the cabinet. We might go right
down éo‘the superintendent of schools, and I don't think
that 's a workable kind of thing. I don't think we can
do anything, really, that is going to severely or adversely
affect the interest of the public without coming before
some public body for a publlic decision-making process.
They can't make law.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Assemblyman Codey has one

last question, and then weﬂ'}e going to have to terminate
,t\‘l

you . %
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ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: Aiong the lines Just mentioned
by Assemblyman Splzziri, don't you feel that the Governor
when he has my bill on hii&esk, when he speaks with his
legal counsel and they debate whether to sign my bill or
to veto it, that that should be a matter of public record
what they have said, how they have reached the decision,
rather than--

MR. RIPPS: Mr. Codey, I can't give you an
honest answer to that question. I'd really have to consider
it.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Mr. Ripps, than¥ you ever
so much for your presentation.

MR. RIPPS: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: The sponser of the bill,
Byron Baer. We will hear the statement of the sponser
of the bill presently. He will return in the afternoon
session, at which time he will give further comments
and answer questions from the committee, so that we can
get in as much as possible by one o'clock.

Assemblyman Baer.

ASSEMBLYMAN BYRON M. BAER: Good morning, ladies
and gentlemen. My name is Byron M. Baer, Assemblyman from
District 37 in Eastern Bergen County. I am the author
and sponser of A-1030, the Open Public Meetings Act,.

I wish to compliment the Judiciary Committee on

109
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its promptness in arranging for hearings on this bill.
This plece of legislation was originally introduced on
February 22, 1973 during the previous administration,
and the prior chairman of the State Government Committee
refused to hold hearings on it or even to put 1t on the
committee's agenda for discussion for the larger part of
a year. It had co-sponsers from both parties then and
now, and I appreciate that this has been scheduled for
hearing in approximately a month from the time of
introduction.

This bill will have a favorable impact on
New Jersey government for generations to come. It 1s 1n
harmony with the Byrne Administration's commitment to
"government under glass.' Because of scandals at various
levels of government, deception by those who govern has
becomgaakgrave concern, It is now clear to many citizens
that‘tﬁé withholding of crucial information has been
part of a pattern of betrayal of the public interest by
some public officlals. In other cases, secrecy makes
possible hiding official blunders, inefficiency, poor
performance, injustice, arbitrariness or double dealing.
The reality 1s that the public performance of some
government bodies 1s pure theater; the decislons that
affect all of our lives a%?!éommonly being made behind

closed doors. This often?results in government dictated
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by special interests, carried out by the few to cater
to the privileged.

1 would like to beglieve that such improprieties
affect only a minority of closed public meetings and public
officials. I know that there are many, many dedicated
public officials at all levels of government. But
sadly, publlic confidence 1s at such a low ebb that the close
meetings of many dedicated public officials of the highest
integrity cause great distrust among a susplicious and
disillusioned public.

I might mention in relation to questigns that
came up Just a few minutes ago that low voter furnout
on municipal electlons recently are evlidence of this, and
that the fallure to use recall procedures may mean
nothing more than the confirmation of loss of confidence
in the use of the process. It could mean just as much
that some people have less hope that the process at
present will serve thelr interest.

Many cltizens have become alienated from
electoral politics and have a feeling of helpless rage
because they are convinced that they have little possibility
of affecting or knowing the real truth about government
actions that vitally affect their 1lives.

By barring the press and public from meetings

of governmental boards, commissions, committees, authorities

! AV
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and councils, we deny the average person access to
information which would enable him to take action on
problems before decisions are made, or in cases where
decisions are tentatively made or made soon after. It
denies the public access to informatlon as early as
possible, so that-the public doesn't have the same time
to react as they might otherwise have.

I can't help but recall the words of Thomas
Jefferson, "The basis of our government being the opinion
of the people, the very first objective should be to keep
that right; and were it left to me to decide whether we
should have a government without newspapers, or newspapers
without a government, I should not hesitate a moment to
prefer the latter."

I am not, however, proposing that, Mr. Chalrman.

',», The freedom of the press does not simply mean
the ffeedom to print anything without prior restraint.
It depends for 1its very life and breathe on first-hand
access to accurate information, which cannot be gained
through leaks or sometimes-blassed tips about closed
meetings from sources which cannot be checked.

I might say to Assemblyman Spizziri, who raised
a question earlier, I think it was Assemblyman Spizziri,
that one of the problems oggﬁnformation that comes out

of closed meetings, even though closed meetings are
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frequently leaky, they are veryffrequently inaccurately
leaky; and the press is caught in the position of having
to present to the public ﬁen misleading information

at the whim of the personhﬁho chooses to make the leak.

Our Foynding Fathers, in their wisdom, provided
checks and balances which became diluted as the bureaucracy
prevaded every facet of citizens' lives; therefore, 1t is
essential 1im order to preserve and keep in practice their

original vislion to open up governmental processes to the

people. It the power of governmental bodies goes unchecked,

hasty and unwarranted action will be taken in.tht hope
that the average citizen will not notice it until he
is presented with a fait accompli. The people have a
constitutional right to petition their government for
redress of grilevances, but if they don't have the necessary
information beforehand, very often they become aware
of the situation contrary to the public good where it is
too late for effective action on the part of citizens.
Even if we fail to open up the system, it will
Inevitably lead to impairment of the electoral process.
If people are to vote intelligently they must have access
to as much information as possible about the actions of
their public officials. I hold, with James Madison, that
"a popular government without popular information or the

means of acquiring it, is but a prologue to a farce or a
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tragedy or perhaps both. Knowledge will forever govern
ignorance: And a people who mean to be their own
Governors, must arm themselves with the power knowledge
gives."

Govern?r Cahill's Attorney-General, Mr. George
Kugler, issued a report only last December which came
to conclusions essentially similar to those contained
in my bill. The Open Public Meetings Act provides that
degree of openness without which we cannot hope to restore
the public's confidence in our form of government. In
providing for increased opennes in government, I was
careful to safeguard against provisions that would be
unfair or impractical. As you will notice, the need to
provide for exceptions to blanket opennes for emergency
situations and protection of civil liberties have been
SCPUP%}9¥51Y taken into account.

'tiThe Open Publice Meetings‘Act is an l1dea whose
time has come. That dqes not mean that there will not be
opposition from public officials who have become used to
the comfort of meeting on public business shielded from
public view and accountability. But it may mean that
opposition will be in the form of proposed crippling
amendments, rather than frontal objections--amendments
such as the proposal to bar?‘he public and press from the

budget-making process--despite the fact that the power of




W

wn

O W N &

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

23

25

thé press 1s recognlzed as one of the most vital powers
exercised in the name of thg public, or amendments that
would allow a meeting for discussion purposes which would
return us very much to tﬁe present situation.

We may hear claims of time wasted in public
meetings and alleged "effeciency" in closed meetings.
Our Founding Fathers never claimed that democratic means
were always faster than undemocratic ones; it was
sufficient that they were more just.

Ladles and gentlemen of the Judiciary Committee--

and I believe the lady member is not present -today--I believe

you have 1in your hands today a real opportunity to make
our soclety significantly more democratic and Just. How
you use that opportunity will long be remembered.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Assemblyman Baer, I wish
to thank you on behalf of the committee, first of all, for
presenting the bill to us, and secondly, for coming this
morning to give your dissertatioﬁ. We will expect to see
you this afternoon; is that correct? And 1f you can see
to 1t that you can present yourself in the vicinity of
three o'clock, we hope to get to you somewhere between
three and four, if at all possible. Is that all right,
sir?

ASSEMBLYMAN BAER: I think so. Pérhaps I could

discuss that with the chailrman after we adjourn.

EQVI
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ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Thank you very much.

ASSEMBLYMAN CODEY: Is that going to be open?

ASSEMBLYMAN BAER: The meeting? Yes, that will
be open.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: A person has requested to
be squeezed 1n before one o'clock, and that is Mary Ellen
Irwin, Borough of New Providence, representing the Mayor
and council.

(MRS.) MARY ELLEN IRWIN: I have a statement from
Mayor Bien. He only gave me one copy. I will gilve it to
you gentlemen later and you can reproduce it.

Gentlemen of the Committee, I would like to
state before I read--

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Pardon me. If all you're
going to do is read it into the record, that can be put
into fAe record at any time.

' MRS. IRWIN: I think there are a few new points
that have not been covered this morning, which I can
skip over, if you wish, saying that they have been already
stated.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: All right.

MRS. IRWIN: Before reading the Mayor's statement)
I would l1like to make a point that we are one of the few
municipalities in the staégathat has open conference

meetings for the past five years. We are one of the ones
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that have that swinging open doéf where people do have to
g0 1in and out of the room when we discuss personnel and
land acquisition and otheidiimilar kinds of things that
would require the public not be there.

I might also state that the only time that anyone
comes 1s during the silly season Just prior to an election,
and the rest of the year we very rarely have anyone, though
we do welcome them and we mention it frequently.

"Mr. Chairman, Ladies and Gentlemen:

"My name is Edward M. Bien, Mayor of the Borough
of New Providence. I regret I cannot personal}ygappear
before the Committee to present my views and am offering thig
statement for the record.

"I am unalterably opposed to Assembly Bill 1030,
The burden of open meetings should not be placed on
municipalities because, in my opinion municipalities, as
a whole, do conduct their business in open. The langﬁage
0. the billl is definiltely inadequate and its present form
can only lead tvo numerous law suits ana delays in the
normal operations of municipal business. One can appreciate
the Intent of the bill but in my opinion the answer does
not lie in legislation. The answer lies with the electorate
They can and will make their decision at the polls if their

1

governing bodies are operating in "secret".

"In reading the language, the definition of public
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business certainly leaves something to be desired. If the
only criterion 1s section 13, which states 'This act shall
be liberally construed in order to accomplish its purpose
and the pﬁblic policy of this State as set forth in

gection 2', I shudder to think who will ultimately make a
final determination. I also question who determines what 1s
confidential--the c¢ltizen, the court?

"Section 6 (5) in its entirety 1s wholly
unacceptable and in particular, subsections 5 (a) and (b).
The cost of the government 1is going to lncrease and the
courts will have a backlog of cases causing a breakdown
in municipal operations. I may be over reacting but I
am sure there will be many test cases.

"In section 7 (b), what guarantee does the
elected official have that governmental process will not
be s?&ﬁied? Doesn't the citizen have recourse to the courts
curren£iy when he feels aggrieved? Will not this bill lead
to partisan politics belng played in all matters? How can
the Leglislature tell the Courts that actions taken by
a governing body are void based on the language of this bill

"Section I is an insult to all elected officials
and I personally resent the term 'disorderly person' in
the languagé of this bill. In my opinion, this bill appears
to have been written by g§ ple‘who have never held elected

office and may nof fullyiappreciate the mechanics of
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of governmental operation.

"For the record, it should‘ne noted the Borough
of New Providence does holgﬁépen meetings, both public and
conference. Admittedly, there are times when 'executive
sessions' must be held but I am proud of our record and the
many meetings we hold in an attempt to let the people
know what 1s happening.

"The thought occurs to me that before the Assembly

adopts this bill, they should apply to themselves the

1s workable. I sincerely believe this bill aS'ﬁ?Lsently
defined leaves much to be desired and should not be
enacted.

"Edward M. Bien, Mayor

"Borough of New Providence."

Our entire council discussed the bill at some
length. Some of the questions that came up concerning
1t regarded: Does written notice in newspapers mean
advertising? The newspaper is under no mandate to publish,
but to advertise every single meeting could be a tremendous
burden to the taxpayers. Utilizing a mailing 1list such as
you mentioned at ten cents a letter will also be a financial
burden for those of u: who come from smeli mpnlcipaJ1L1nn,
At present 1in New Providence we do send the minutes to anybody

requesting them.

language incorporated therein, to see if what is being proposked
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There are no protections for the public
officials made up of very well-meaning, hardworking
volunteers who approsch s thankless job with energy and
community spirit. Highly charged rhetoric and political
motivations overcoming governmental relations could
provide these public spirited citizens with a disorderly
conduct rap with the slightest misinterpretation or lack
of thoroughness by a clerk or administrator.

We feel a number of areas can be clarified,
and I will not go through them right now. I think enough
people have this morning. But I would like to close with
two comments, one in answer to a question which you asked.

You asked if the 45 day 1imit on the statute
of limitations will be adequate. I believe I can speak
for the Borough saying tﬁat it would be entirely unfeasible.
Supppsé;at a meeting, which was later declared null and
void,‘you had awarded the contract, authorized signature,
to a contractor on the roads--and I was formerly a public
works chairman. That road in New Providence would probably
be bullt by the time the meeting was declared null and void.
I believe the 45 days is an unworkable solution.

I would like to close with one comment. Two
weeks ago the Harbor Commission, in the State of California,

in the City of Los Angeleﬁ held a meeting all morning

long, which they frequently do, and it got right up to
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lunchtime. During that meetingﬂat that point the chalrman
announced, Since we have rup so late and since we know

by our own nature that wedg§ll be discussing public
issues, though no votes willl be taken, we would like to
invite everyone in the audience--in fact, we must invite
everyone 1in the audience--to join us for lunch; but, of
course, 1it's Dutch.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Thank you very, very much.
I take it you have to leave at the present time.

MRS. IRWIN: If you have questions--

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: The problem is,”we don't
have time for questions until two o'clock.

MRS. IRWIN: The Mayor, council and attorney
are avallable at any time for any kind of questions which
the committee may have. The Borough has a population
of approximately 15,000; and with that in mind, we would
be happy to answer any questions any time you want.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Thank you very much for

coming.

I will now call this meeting adjourned until
two o'clock, and thank everybody for coming. Feel free
to return at two. Promptly it will begin.

(A luncheon recess was taken from 1:00 p.m. to

2:00 p.m.)

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: We are now going to open

112
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our afternoon session, 1t being two o'clock, with
testimony from the League of Women Voters. But prior
to starting the session, again in the prerogative of the
chair, I'm going to limit discussion, to limit the
questions becaus§ of a definite lack of time. We have
several people who have requested to speak, and I'm
going to make every effort to give everybody an opportunity
to speak. So that in order to allow that opportunity,
I'm going to 1limit each speaker to ten minutes and limit
the questions of each speaker to five. And if we can
do 1t more quickly than that, all the better. But I want
everybody to concentrate on what possibly we have not
vyet heard. 1It's not necessary to bring home again and
again the same element, one way or the other. We are
incterested 1n hearing different points of view, any
addig}qpal reasons for or against any particular provision
of ghé?bill. We take the cogencyﬁor the argument into
consideration and not necessarily the amount or the numbers
for or against.

So with that in mind, we will proceed.

Who wished to speak first?

ASSEMBLYMAN SPIZZIRI: Before you begin with the
other witnesses, in the interest of time, I received two

letters at my office reg%”ﬂing the public hearing, and I
I

ask that rather than read them into the record that the
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stenographer be directed to incorporate them in toto
into the record. |

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWQ!&S: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN SPIZZIRI: I will give them to the
stenographer, and at his leisure he can incorporate them
into the record.

(The following 1is a letter from John A. Paulus,
Village Manager, to the Honorable John A. Spizziri,
Assemblyman, dated March 12, 1974:

Dear Assemblyman Spizziri:

I understand that Assembly, No. 1030jﬁthe
Open Public Meetings Act, 1is currently before the Assembly
Judiciary Committee for consideration and that you are a
member of that committee. This bill, in my opinion, 1s the
result of overreaction on the part of the State Legislature
to a problem. I do not question that some municipalities, ¢t
a degree, are conducting business other than at proper
public meetings. On the other hand, your proposal will
be detrimental to municipal government in the other
direction by prohibiting candid consideration of matters
by those who must make decisions. Municipal Councilmen, as
an example, need opportunities to try out alternate solution
to problems among each other without fear of being improperl
criticized for suggesting them. Likewise, Councilmen deserv

the opportunity of securing ideas from thelr staff people
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without concern that proposals advanced and considered
will reach the headline stage.

I have great concern that the bill, if enacted,
will retafd consideration of 1lnnovative solutions to problem
and reduce professional staff people to mechanics, rather
than generators éf ideas,

Another aspect of this 1is to encourage people
not to serve on advisory boards, commissions, and
committees. Some very valuable work is rendered to municipa
government by unselfish, unpaid persons, who are willing
to devote time, talents, and energy to governmental service.
If they are unable to consider.ideas and proposals with
those whom they must deal in an uninhibited atmosphere,
they are unlikely to continue service.

If you and the other members of the Judiciary
Comm@tﬁée belive that the matter covered by the bill is
a probiém, I urge that you recommend against the current
bill and then work with local government officlals through
the New Jerscy State League of Municipalities in expectation
of developing a bill that will serve your purposes and
5t111 be beneficlal, rather than detrimental, to local
government.

Your consideration of these ideas will be

"

sincerely appreciated. Nt

Yours very truly, John A. Paulus, Village Manager

K
X
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(The following 18 a fétter from Charles C.
Collins, Jr. attorney for Village of Ridgewood, to
John A. Spizziri, Esq., %3ﬁ%mblyman, dated March 12, 1974:

Dear John:

I have Jjust reviewed A-1030 after notice of
a hearing by the Judiciary Committee scheduled for
March 14, 197h4.

I write to you as a municipal attorney with
some experience 1in the operation of local government
knowing of your past involvement in this function.

It is my opinion that the proposed;}ggislation
attacks a thumbtack with a sledgehammer.

It 1s undoubtedly true that the public is
entitled to know not only what the actions of 1ts governing
body arebut the reasons for the decisions behind them.

I don't, however, feel that this "right to know"
includes the right to be present at every session of a
governing body acting in consideration of public business.
One of the purposes of an "executive" or '"closed' session
of a governing or other municipal body is to allow the
exchange of ideas and the statement of positions which may
not only be illformed but even hypothetical or "devil's.
advocate" in nature.

Again some 1ssues will evoke emoﬁional

exchanges which the participants will later regret.
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Mevertheless, these exchanges have a definite value in

that tney offer the members an opportunity to test their
positions with candor and to the full extent of their
feelings 6n the issues. To open these sesslions to the
public woula only result in inhibiting this kind of debate.

Tnere 18 a phrase 1in Section 2 of the bill

which is particulariy misleading. It is, "...that secrecy
in public affairs undermines the faith of the public in

government ...".

Whether deliberate or not the draftsmen
have confused "privacy" with "secrecy". The former can
serve a useful purpose 1in advancing the public interest,
as 1 have indicated, while the latter suggests invidious
activity not warranted under the circumstances.

"Public trust" 1s a two way street. Most
elected officials deserve the trust of their constituents
and paﬁg been elected to effeciently and expeditiously
conducfstheir various dutles. To place them in a fishbowl
w1ll seriously impede these functions.

Very truly yours, Charles C. Collins, Jr.
Attorney for Village of Ridgewood.

MRS. ANN LEVINE: I'm Ann Levine, Vice-President
of the State Board of Directors of League of Women Voters.

With me 1s Ethel Daum, President, Medford Lakes League of

Women Voters, and Nancy Vg*glowsky, Chairwoman, Medford

Lakes Observer Corp.




We have 97 local 1eag;es in the state, with about
9,000 members. At least 52 @£ thesé 97 leagues have
members observing local ggﬁérnment bodiles and reporting
to their membership in the community on a regular basis.
Most of the other leagues do observe their government
bodies, but they are not quite as organized as these
52.

We asked one very representative league, whose
experience I think 1s typical in New Jersey, to come and
give a short statemen. as to the kinds of problems they
run into and a recommendation they want to makéf After
that I would like to make a couple of verykbrief technical
comments about particular clauses in the bill, and that
would be the extent of our testimony today.

Nancy Venzlowsky.

(MRS.) NANCY VENZLOWSKY: I am Nancy Venzlowsky,
of the Medford-Medford Lakes League of Women Voters and

Chairwoman of our Township Observer Committee. We are

currently observing our Medford Township Committee, Planning

Zoning, Health and School Boards which meet publicly once
a month. The Central Record is our officially recognized
newspaper and is published weekly.

Our observations have led us to conclude that
deliberation on issues which affect the public good is often

done 1in private session. Examples are numerous, but just
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a few will be mentioned here.

Cur last Zoning Board meeting was interrupted
several times to caucus. Planning Board and Township
Committeé meetings have, on occasion, started late for
the same reascn. When asked for reports to the assembled
public body our Committeemen have had little or nothing
to say and, al times, expressed preference for a private
meeting.

At most of our meetings open to the public we
have noted that the vote 1s cast with little or no discussic
indicating to us that dellberation has taken place elsewhere
We have also witnessed members abstain from voting due
to some financlal interest, but the public has had no
opportunity to see whether or not this individual has
influenced the outcome of the final vote. This 1lack of
commpﬁ&bation with the public has only served to increase
suspiéion and doubt as to the personal integrity of those
involved.

Increasing taxes are of concern to all of our
residents in Medford Townshilp; yet, our local budget which
took four months to prepare was open for discussion

approximately one and a half hours. Many residents left

the meeting feeling that the dle had been cast and their

recommendations fell on deaf ears.

For the,reasoné noted above, members of the
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League of Women Voters Townshig Observer Committee welcome
the introduction of A~1030,,but wiéh to add the following
recommendation: g
1. In the interest of public awareness, we
urge our legislators to require that agendas of forthcoming
meetings be made available to the pﬁblic and the news
media upon request.
That concludes my testimony.
ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Who 1s next?
(MRS.) ETHEL DAUM: We have found this to be
such a problem in our own township, the unhappfgess of
our local citizens, that our own local league has been
considering these problems ourselves to see what we can
do.
ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Are all three of you going
to present testimony directly, or is that the extent of
it?
MRS. LEVINE: That's the extent of theirs. I
wanted to make a couple of technical comments on the

definitions.
ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Could you make your comments
and then we will allow questions.

MRS. LEVINE: Yes. In reading the definition of

n

"meeting," that's on page 2, in Section 3b, it seems to be

that that definition might well apply to a League of Women

12y
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Voter's meeting, at which we invited, let's say, members
of the Judiclary Committee--

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: I'm sorry, which paragraph,
which page?

MRS. LEVINE: Page 2, Section 3b, about the middle
of the page, the definition of "meeting...any gathering
attended by, or open to, all of the members of a public
body, held with the intent, on the part of the members of
the body, to discuss or act upon public business."

It seems to me that if we 1n fact invited the
members of this committee) say, to an open League meeting
to discuss a bill like this, or some other matter before
your committee, that would fall under the definition of
this law.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: 1Is there an objection to
that?”

| MRS. LEVINE: Not particularly. But I wonder
if that's the intent of this legislation. There is a proble
when you get to Section 5 on the next page, where it says,
"At the commencement of every meéting of a public body the
person presiding shall announce publicly, and sﬁall cause
to be" put in the minutes all this business about the
notification of meetings. In that case, who is supposed to
give the notice? Would tﬁaé be the chairman of the committee

or the president of the League of Women Voters?
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It seems to me that you have to rework the
definition in here somehow:

Most of the otuié statements we would have
to make about this bill would apply to its effect upon
the legislature, and our views on that I think are well

known to at least one member of this committee, Mr. Doyle,

who is chairman of the Rules Committee, who sat and listened

to our testimony on that last Friday, and I'm not golng
to go into that in any great detail. A lot of the
comments we would have were in that testimony and in the
testimony of other witnesses who have testif%ég today.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: A point well taken.

Any questions?

ASSEMBLYMAN GREGORIO: Just one question to the
young lady who made her statement.

Do you think it would be necessary to open
a conference or caucus, or whatever you want to call it,
a private meeting, or Jjust stop limiting the time at
the public meetings? I understood you to say that
on the budget meetings, as in our city, we have budget

meetings where the individual department heads for months,

and yet we do have public meetings on the budget, but we
don't 1limit the time or the conversation of questions or
recommendations at all. Do you think 1t's necessary for

the public to be at budget meetings with departmental heads
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and foremean and so forth? Do you really feel that would
be necessary when there is no limit ot time as to the
questions that you're able to ask at the public meeting:

AMRS. VENZLOWSKY: As I said, I think the
committee felt that they work very hard and long to present
a good budget, and perhaps the problem was that nobody
knew whether or not the dle had been cast. T hey had
already decided what the budget was goling to be; and
hearings or not, that dcesn't seem to matter.

ASSEMBLYMAN GREGORIO: That may be, but in
general, do you think as long as 1it's advertised you have
the budget in advance and your organization is able to
3tudy it and then come to two public meetings and ask
all the questions you want, whether 1t lasts until
midnight or one o'clock in the morning, that that would
be sgf?fnient?

- MRS. VENZLOWSKY: It's helpful to understand
the budget, but it doesn't mean that anything is going to
be changed.

ASSEMBLYMAN GREGORIO: We are not going to change
that by this law, either.

MRS. LEVINE: One of the mailn concerns that the
League has is the accountability of its individual
representatives. FEach ofxthé committee members in that

case 1s coming up for eleétion sometime and the people
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are concerned about how they oﬁerate in their Jjobs, and
sitting and listening to‘testimonyuat a public hearing
is not necessarily a verg‘éood indication of that.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Are there any other
questions?

Are there any other comments you wish to make?

MRS. LEVINE: Not today.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: On behalf of the committee,
I would like to thank you for coming and presenting your
side of A-1030. Thank you.

MRS. LEVINE: We are interested in Méaring
everybody else; too.

J. M, LIEBMAN: My name is J. M. Liebman, I'm
an Assistant County Counsel in the Hudson County Law
Department.

I have been asked by my superior Mr. Geronimo,
County Counsel of Hudson Ounty, to attend this meeting
and present the views as he has gathered them from the
governing body of the County of Hudson, which is, of course,
the Board of Freeholders. Mr. Geronimo apologizes for
his not being able to attend, but unfortunately today
is the day that the Board of Freeholders holds 1its open
public freeholders' meeting.

I would just like to make some brief comments

concerning this legislation at the outset so that we
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don't belabor many points already discussed.

I would like to adopt, on behalf of the Hudson
County Board of Freeholders, and join in the remarks of
Mr. Hayser, from the Township of Dover, since many of hls
remarks would equally apply to the governing body of the
County of Hudson, or any other county, for that matter,
as it would apply to his township, being the Township of
Dover.

The basic objection that the County of Hudson
public officials have to thls particular proposed legislation

are the definitions in the Act under Section 3 and the

subdivisions thereof: a, b, ¢, and d. It would appear
from these definitions in the subdivisions of the proposed
legislation tﬁat a caucus meetling, which 1s a usual thing
held 1in county government prior to a regular public
freehﬁféérs' meeting, would not be permitted under this
1egislaéion. It 1s the County of Hudson's feeling that
a caucus meeting is a valuable tool 1In the operation of
county government, in that it affords an opportunity to
the governing body of the county at that time to have informa
discussion concerning matters which will be placed on the
agenda at the public meeting. It 1s our feeling that to
permit--

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWK,iNé: Pardon me, sir. When you

1

say, "it 1s our feeling,” who is "our"?
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MR. LIEBMAN: The go#erning body of the County
of Hudson.

W

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWENS: You mean the entire Board
of Freeholders?

MR. LIEBMAN: Yes. It is the Board of
Freeholders' feeling that this is an invaluable tool 1n
the operation of county governmment, and that to permit
the public to attend such a meeting would be to limit the
debate and open and free discussion by the governing body
of the county. It would have the effect of causing a
county official on the Board of Freeholders tofiot openly

say what 1s on his mind concerning a pending matter before

the Board of Freeholders--

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: What type of matter wouldn't

he be allowed or wouldn't he be able to?

MR. LIEBMAN: The reason I say this, he might
be 1ntimidated by somebody who is at the meeting. He might
be afraid of hurting somebody else's feelings who might
be there, if a matter affects that particular individual,
or a group of individuals. I Jjust say that it would
limit the public's attendance at a caucus meeting,
certainly, would 1limit an official's ability to speak
openly and freely and say what 1s on his mind concerning
a particular topic that might be before the board. It

could be embarrassing for him to say certain things. He

leg
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might not want to say it because he doe3 not want this
particular individual or group to know his feelings in
depth on a particular matter. They will find out what his
feelings afe when he votes at the public meeting after
public discussion)on the matter.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Let me ask you this, sir:
What 1s the proﬁlem in a public official making his feelings
known?

MR. LIEBMAN: In depth? I think there is a
problem, because, as was brought up before, the judiciary
makes certain declsions concerning how they feel and how
they are going to decide a particular case. I think the
same rule and the same feellings should be afforded to
a public official who may be a freeholder of a county,
he ﬁay declde a matter on things that he doesn't want to
make;mﬁbwn publicly.

h ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: The Judiciary Committee
of the Assembly holds all of its meetings open. What would
be the diffesrence between your board of chosen freeholders
and the decislon-maklng process they have to go through
and the decision-making process that must take place by
the committee sitting before you?
MR. LIEBMAN: I think that the determinations

made by the County Board ;}RFreeholders are different in

scope and nature. .




W

& 0 &

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

23

25

"views of other freeholders on the matter. They discuss

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: What is the difference,

sir? 4Jhat 1s the difference that should require them
X

to keep thelr meetings pﬁ“ate, diftesent than our

Judiciary Committee, for example?

MR. LIEBMAN: Let me say one thing: we do have
public meetings twice a month at which the public, any
member of the public is free to attend and voice their
opinion concerning a matter that is under discussion
at thab particular meeting. However, in order to discuss
these things openly and freely among the freeholders,
they do have caucus meetings prior to the regh{;r public
meeting that they hold and they discuss their views

concerning certain things, and a determination is not

made at that particular point. They obtain and get the

it openly and in depth. And I feel that since no
determination is finally made at that time, the determinatidgn
is only made after an open public meeting, which is the
Board of Freeholders' meeting, that this particular
legislation is superfluous.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: What this committee 1is
trylng to determine, sir, is if there is any valid
reason for allowing caucus meetings to remain private at
the county level, at the municipal level, or at the state

level. And if there is not, then why shouldn't the public
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ve entitled to know what 1s going on.

MR. LIEBM/AN: Because I think 1t has the effect
by the attendance of the public of inhibiting free debate
and open thought and discussion by members of a governing
body as to a particular topic.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: 1Is that because the
governing members are afraid, for whatever reason, to let
the public know what 1s on their minds, the public that
elected them?

MR. LIEBMAN: That could be one of the reasons,
that could be among the reasons.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: 1Is that a valid reason?

MR. LIEBMAN: I'm not a freeholder. I can't
really speak for the freeholders what is on their minds.
But as a general proposition, I feel it's a valid
proﬁgéition that 1f the public is invited to a caucus
meetiﬂg many members of the board of chosen freeholders
might be inhibited in truly expressing their views openly
and giving their thoughts through free debate to other
members of the board of chosen freeholders.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Pardon my ignorance, but
I thought freeholders are elected by the people,
representing the people.

MR. LIEBMAN: iirr‘;ey are .

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Why wouldn't they be
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responsible to the people and why wouldn't the people
be allowed to know what they(fe doing?
t;

MR. LIEBMAN: Thégbare responsible. They are

responsible in that they have public meetings at the present

time twice a month at which matters are discussed openly
together with the public, who expresses their views before
a determination is made.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: What valid reasons do you
have to present to this committee that the process of
government itself would be inhibited by allowing a public
meeting? I am not particularly concerned witﬁ”éwtimid
freeholder not wanting somebody to hear what 1s on his
mind. Government 1is for the people, not for those who
govern. I'm trying to determine in what manner the
government of the people is going to be 1nhibited by the
public meeting.

MR. LIEBMAN: Well, in this legislation, first
of all, you have penal provisions where an official who
might act, according to this legislation, by not having
a public meeting to discuss a certaln topic, that he
is gullty of being a disorderly person.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: So, therefore, you're
saying--

MR. LIEBMAN: A freeholder is human. I can

envision a situation where every time a matter 1s to come
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wp before the Board of Freeholders for them to act where
they will seek a legal opinion as to whether or not

that should come under the definition of being open to the
public or not open to the public. (Cnce glven a legal
definition, the freeholder can't assume that the legal
position taken is corvect or improper, because sometime

in the future a political dissident or person who doesn't
like a particular freeholder could go to court and bring
an action in the superior court under the provisions

of thils legislation to have that particular action declared
void because he may have heard a freeholder after a
freeholders' meeting with all other freeholders invited
to lunch discussing something in private that should

have been public. And I submit that the provislons of this

proposed legislation are unrealistic.

lff‘1 ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Let me suggest, then, you
may be correct that the bill needs sprucing up and you
may even have a point that the possibility of being
Judged disorderly person may inhlibit certain actions on the
part of a public official. But sprucing up the bill and
possibly even doling away with the provision of saylng what
is a disorderly person, what valid reason is there for
a public official not to make his feelings known to the

i

public about why he 1s dd&ﬁg what he 1s dolng.

MR. LIEBMAN: Well, there are provisions that
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present proposed legislation caucuses would not be permitted
as they presently exist.

I feel that the present proposed bill in its
present form ﬁould lead to innumerable lawsults which would
place for the time of the pendency of those lawsults a
¢loud upon actions thzt had already been taken by public
officials at a meeting.

I think a situation was brought up, an example
where a town council awarded a contract to a contractor
and within 45 days a person could attack that as not
having been done in the public domain, no public discussion,
and the road is already bullt. What would happen in other
situations where a governing body of either a county or
a municipality thinking that they acted according to the
provisions of this present legislation passed a resolution,
and g’%hird party relying upon that resolution acted upon
it, aﬁd then 44 days later some member of the public, becaus
he may have heard the freeholders talking at lunch about
this particular thing, brings an action in the superior
court to void that particular resolution? I feel that this
1s unreasonable, and I feel that there should be some
better solution to this problem than this present
legislation.

Listening to tﬁ!gremarks given by the sponser of

this particular legislation, 1t would appear to me personall

i
’

/.’
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that the legislation is misguided and misdirected in
certain respects. The spdn@er of the bill mentiloned
the public mistrust of th; public officials. I imagine
he is referring to a certain extent to Watergate and the
recent situations in the Governor's office in the State
of New Jersey.

The blll as 1t is presently written is misguided
because 1t wouldn't remedy those kinds of situations
because those types of activities took place in the
executive branch of the government. The bill zp its

»
present form doesn't apply 1in any way to any executives
in government, but rather it appears that due to the
public mistrust because of Watergate or other things that
may have occurred in this state in recent times the
munlicipalities and the counties and local governments
are bearing the brunt of this public mistrust and that,
in my view, the legislation 1s misguided and misdirected
because it wouldn't remedy the types of public mistrust
that are referred to by the assemblymen who sponsered this
bill, and it's filtering down to the local governments
on the county and municipal level unfairly.

I think I have concluded.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Thank you very much.

Any questions of the board?

ASSEMBLYMAN GREGORIO: Nct 30 much a question,

131
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Mr. Chairman, but more of a statement.

I think it was rather difficult for anyone to
answer the qucstion as what coculd possibly come up at
a conference or caucus session that shouldn't come up
at a public mecting. Even though I am against that part
of the bill, I sat here trying to think of what could
possibly come up, and I couldn't give an answer without
sounding like I wanted to do everything in secret. But
I think i1t would be special interest groups that would be
more likely to attend the conference or caucus sessions,
whereas more of the general public attend the open, the
regularly scheduled open public meetings. And, therefore,
I think, for example, if a municipality has a majority
of one party or another, perhaps the whole governing
body was Republican, perhaps it might be a group of

0

Deﬁg¢réts thet attended those conference sessions and
would just by their being there would slightly, I think,
be a natural thing to intimidate some of the things the
people might say if they weren't there, but they would be
willing to vote in that favor or say it at the regularly
scheduled open public meeting. And I'm sorry to have to
have the chalrman or any of us put in that particular

spot. It's a difficulgqﬁuestion to answer.

MR. LIEBMAN:ﬂ’I understand.
Just»additiénally, I would say almost everything
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/
comes up at a caucus meeting tgat's discussed by the
members of the goveruing pogy woulé come up at a public
meeting 1f it was placed ﬁ the agenda as public business.
ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Any other questions?
ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: As Assistant County Counsel,
in line with what Mrs. Irwin testified to earlier, with
regard to this 45 day provision for the bringing of an
action in lieu of prerogative writ, are you famillar
at all with the sale of bonds, county bonds, municipal
bonds?
MR. LIEBMAN: To a certain extent. <
ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: The bond market fluctuates
up and down. Could you envision a situétion where a bond
ordinance or bond resolution, in the county's case,
authorizing the sale of bonds, what would happen to the
marketability of every bond ordinance, or bonds authorized
in the ordinance? Would it impair the obligations under
their--could you conceive of any bond counsel being
willing to give an opinion?
MR. LIEBMAN: No, because if there 1s a cloud
of suspicion for a period of that 45 days within which
the action could be brought, I feel it would inhibit the
sale of those bonds within that period of time.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: And the bond market changes

as much as a point a month, doesn't 1t?
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MR. LIEBMAN: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: Bonds could have been cld
without cloud of encumbrance or hypothecation, or anything
else, at a éiven day, but the 45 days might see the bond
market a point higher?

MR. LIEBMAN: I would agree.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: Or a point lower.

MR. LIEBMAN: Yes, either way.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: If there are no other
questions, Mr. Liebman, I would like to thank you very
much.

MR. LIEBMAN: ‘l'hank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Next person on the list
is Mayor Arthur J. Holland, or the City of Trenton.

MS. PATRICIA L. DONATH: He 1s unable to make
1t.’(ﬂ%4is going to submit a written statement.

' ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: A1l right. Next person
on the 1list 1s Morgan R. Seiffert, for the New Jersey
Press Assoclation.

HARRY ANDERSON: My name is Anderson. Mr.
Seiffert 1is gone.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Are you going to testify
in his place?

MR. ANDERSON: h’és.

I'm a past pr€sident of the New Jersey Press
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Association, an organization cd&prised of all of the
daily and most of the weekly newspapers in New Jersey.

We support the{aﬁ?sage of Assembly B1ll 1030 1n
the interest of strengtheﬁing the public's right to know,
the activities of governmental bodles; although, we admit--
at least, I admit after hearing some of the testimony thic:
morning, there might be some technical changes.

The Association’'s only reservation is to the
notification of newspapers. It feels that such notification
should be through public notice, or legal advertising,
if you will. Lo

Our counsel, Mr. Seiffert, was here this morning.
He has a short statement, and also some suggested changes
in Section 3, which he thinks might cover our obJjections
or might clarify the bill.

There was earlier testimony today by the man
from Toms River, I think one of the assemblymen brought
the matter up, on the introduction of ordinance and
passages on first reading without any adequate notice
prior to the introduction and passage on first reading.
Now, the defense was that, well, they can object to it
on second reading. But I think--and speaklng for the
Assocliation--that people ought to have an opportunity to
object to it perhaps on introduction. There are too

many public podies in the State of New Jersey that glve
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lip service to the public's right to know. If 1t were

not for the secrecy with which many public bodies go

about their business, particularly in the affluent suburbs
of New Jersey, there probably would be no necessity for
this legislatilon.

As a newspaperman, and as resident of Morris
County, I have seen many municlpal governing bodies
conduct business in a community as if it were a family
owned business, sort of father knows best attitude,
if you will, so much so that in my own communiﬁy where
for many, many years, since 1932 or 13933, 1t was dominated
by one party--and despite the Mayor of Chatham's statement
this morning that people like it, my community 1s right
nearby, we now have the other party in the last two years
has taken complete control--the absence of resident
specféébrs at council meetings, and other meetings, does
nct always mean a lack of interest.

Harry Green, who 1s a very well known libel lawyer
in the State of New Jersey, has said that newspapers are
the public's eye at such meetings, and the state newspapers
in that role believe strongly in the public's right to know.

I would like to read you Mr. Seiffert's statement.

"The New Jersey Press Association is of the

opinion that there 1is nofpiearly defined distinction between

Section 4 of the Bill, which apparently provides in the
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maln for special meetings and Section 10 which provides
for regular meetings.

"Some wording should be added to make it patently
clear that no notices are required for regular meetings as
provided in Sect%on 10, except as otherwise required by
statute.

"The present provisions of Section 3 e providing
notice to the public which i1s the major protection to
the public interest that the bill 1s designed to protect
is entirely inadequate.

"The posting of a notice 1n a pubiicjoffice is
ordinarily viewed by few of the public except public employe
who are regularly in the governmental office involved.
Citizens do not go, for example, to the county seat to look
for posted notices. It 1s unrealistic. Likewise the
provision for filing the written advance notices O0f the
meeting with the municipal or county clerk or secretary
of state, as the case may be, is of no value to the
public except for perhaps possible reference in order to
obtain accuracy after notice has been otherwise actually
received in some other manner.

'Merely mailing the proposed notices 72 hours
in advance to two newspapers 1s a 'hit or miss' method of
public notice. There may or may not be a newspaper account

of the proposed meeting.

l 1{'«
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"While newspapers do have an interest in
publishing the news there may or may not be a news story
published in sufficient time to acquaint the public for
any number of reasons: the mail may not be received in
time at all; such mail may be lost or overlooked in the
news' or editor's office or because of other exigencies
in the newspaper operation the story may not be published
at all.

"The main body politic which is interested in the
process of the government are attuned to looking in the
newspapers for public notices which are required to be
published by innumerable statutes providing for
publication of official legal notices. This has been the
regular method utilized for more than a century and there
is no substitute for requiring publication in newspapers.
Newspapér legal notice must be mandatory.

"If such amendments are made, 1t would hardly
seem necessary to include Section 11 providing for mailing
notices to any person who may request the same. This
may be a very burdensome procedure and the failure to mail
such notices may vitiate very necessary emergency action.

"It 1s recommended that Section 11 be deleted."

Accompanying this, Mr. Seiffert has his suggestion
as to how this might be amended, and I will give them

to the stenographer.

I~
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That 1s the end of my testimony.
("Proposed Amendments to the husembly Bill No.
1030 submitted by New Jersey Press Assoctiation with respect
to Public Notice.
"Amend Section 3‘containing derinitvions as follows:
Page 2, Line 32, add detfinition of 'newspaper;'
e, 'newspaper' shall mean a .egal newspaper
as detined by N.J.S. 35:1-2.1 and 2.2.
"NOTE: This adaition to the detinitions will change Section
3 e to Section 3 f.
Amend Section 3 e (new t) as follows:
"'haequate notice' means written advance notice
of" at least 72 hours, giving the time, date and
location of proposed meeting or meetings, (1)
prominently posted in at least one public place
- reserved for such or similar announcements (2)
published in at least two newspapers in the
State of New Jersey and circulating in the
municipality in which the proposed meeting is
to be held; in the case of a state body it shall
be published in at least two newspapers one of
which shall be published in the municipality in
which the meeting is to take place and if there
be no such newspaper published therein then in

lieu thereof in a newspaper published 1n the Statg
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of New Jersey and circulating in said municipality

and in the case of a county body in at least two
newspapers published in the State of New Jersey
and circulating in the county at least one of whigq
newspapers shall be published in said county, and
if the county body has designated an offlcial
newspaper or newspapers, the nétice shall be
published in at least one of such newspapers; and
in the case of a municipal body in at least two
newspapers published in said municipa%ity and 1f
there be no such newspaper published in said
municipality or if only one such newspaper 1is
published therein then in lieu thereof in a
newspaper or newspapers as the case may be
published in the State of New Jersey and
circulating 1n saild municipality, and if the
municipal body has designated an official
newspaper or newspapers the notice shall be
published in at léast one of such newspapers; and
(3) filed with the clerk of the municipality, or
the clerk of the county or the Secretary of State
in the case respectively of municipal, county

or other public bodies.")

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Thank you very much.

Any questions?

h
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Essemb!vman Karcher.,

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: You're very strong on the
idea there should be legal notices--

MR . ANDERSON: Well, the next question 1s, are
we thinking of revenue, and I am not thinking of revenue.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: I'm sure.

MR. ANDEKSON: T worked for the Newark News for
4O years and T never thought about advertising in the
Newark News. Maybe that's the reason they're out of
business,

ASSEMBLYMAN KiRCHER: It is a fact, though, that
lezal notices are the highest scaled revenue source,
outside cf poiiticzl advertising”

MR . ANDERSON: I don't think that's true.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: Aven't they charged for

o as
on a line bazsis
ME . They're charged on a line baslis,
which 18 sel T thne legisistur

AOOEMBLYMAN KARCHER: Legal publication, in order
Lo be a legal newspaper, and to gualify for anm ad in the

paper for that type of advertisi ng, there are requirements

don 't know whether that's true
or not.

AASEMELYMAN KARCHER: That's under Title 25, I




1 believe. It's the operation of law. Now, the question
2 then becomes within that, does the meeting of the editorial

3 board of a newspaper become a public meeting and people

4 || should attend and discuss the--

5 MR. ANDERSON: You have been befogglng the issue
6 all day. You have been bringing up the judiclary and the
7 Governor and everybody else. You haven't sald you're

8 against this bill, but obviously your attitude to 1t is
9 that you're against this bill. I think that the Governor
10 1s something else again, and I think the Judiclary 1s

_ o
11 something else again, and we are not talking about that.
12 ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: No. I'm talklng about--
13 MR. ANDERSON: Wait a minute. We are talking
14 about meetings of public bodies and counties and the local
15 level. I think you have been befogging the issue, and I

16 have been here all morning and--

17 ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Sir--
18 MR. ANDERSON: I'm sorry, I shouldn't argue.
19 ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Thank you. I wouldn't ask

20 that you give your opinion as to what legislators think.

21 We are only interested in your opinion.

22 MR. ANDERSON: Well, that's my opinion, that he
23 is befogging the issue. Is that all right?

24 ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: We are not interested in

25 what the legilslators think. We are only interested in what-

L1
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MR. ANDERSON: 1Is he a member of the Judiciary
Committee?

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Yes, sir, he 1s.

We are only interested in finding out what you
think of the bill.

ASSEMBLYMAN YARCHER: 1 don't take any umbrage
at that.

MR. ANDERSON: I didn't mean anything personal.

I would like to say very quickly, if you send
a notice saying there will be a special meeting or there
will be a meeting of a council or Beard of Adjustment,
it might not get into the newspapers. As this man says,
our lawyer says, it might get lost. They might not think
it has any news value.

I think the legislation ought to have something
say dt}s mandatory to publish 1t, because when you send
something to a newspaper, and I'm sure that you have, as
a man who has run for office, sometimes it gets 1in and
sometimes it doesn't, or sometimes it gets on the back
page or sometimes it gets on the front page, depending on
the viewpoint of the paper and/or the publisher, and so

forth.

So that I would feel, and I think the Associlation

would feel, that the obligation to publish it in the

newspaper ought to be a mandatory thing. The only way
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you're going to make it mandatory 1s to make it through
a legal notice. I don't think thatxs demanding too much.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: How about the suggestion,
then, that a corollary to this legislation, would you
recommend then iq line with that philosophy that it be made
a prerequisite to maintaining their legal statutus that
the print these as a public service, as a prerequisite
to them keeping their licensed status of a newspaper?

How about that?

MR. ANDERSON: First of all, there is no licensed
status O a newspaper.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: They become a legal
newspaper.

MR. ANDERSON: Some places have it and some
places don't have a legal newspaper. They aesignate
official newspapers in some communities, and some places
they don't.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: What I'm saylng, to get
that status certain statutory requirements have to be met.
Would you have any obJjection to making it--

MR. ANDERSON: You have a second-class malling
privilege and you have to be cilrculating in the community
in which it's covered.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: For so many years.

MR . ANDERSON: That's right.

Lt
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ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: With a pald circulation.
It can't be a precirculation--

MR. ANDERSON: That's exactly right.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: Once you meet those
statutory requirements, I think there might one or two
other ones, you gét a status of--you get a legal status,
you can accept legal advertising. What I'm saying is,
would you have any obJjection to also making 1it, in the
public interest, once again, with the newspapers, the
News Press Assoclation, would you have any objection of
having that in as one of the requlrements to maintain
a legal status that they accept this in the public interest
of publishing these notes?

MR. ANDERSON: Yes, 1 would, because I think
you're entitled to a newspaper that it must publish this,
must'bﬁblish a free item that somebody is going to need.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: By the same token, you
think 1t should be mandatory.

MR. ANDERSON: Yes, I think 1t should be
mandatory.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: But you don't want to
assist the municipality in filling that role.

MR. ANDERSON: ©No, and I don't think it's
going to cost them that much money; although, I think the

lady from New Providence thought it would run them into a
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great deal of debt. As a matter of fact, the legislature
has been increasing under several réceht bills the amount
on which no bids are necessary, up and up and up and up.
I think it's up to $2,500.00 now.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: We have one minute left
for questioning of this gentleman.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: One last question.

The public body is defined herein to mean a
commission, authority, board, council, committee and
every other group organized under the laws of this state
consisting of two or more persons, to pérform a&public
governmental function, et cetera.

Now, every newspaper, with rare exceptions,
1s a public corporation, organized under the statute of
this state has a Board of Directors which, once again,
is elected pursuant to the statute made and provided, and
obviously when they publish a governmental notice they
are performing a governmental function, public governmental
function. My question is: under that reading and
understanding that and knowlng now that the majority are
public corporations, with officers appointed pursuant to
the statute, and they do governmental functions, should
the Board of Editors, their editorial board, be open to

the public and should they publish a notice when they're

going to have their editorial board meeting?

4
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MR. ANDERSON: Well, the editorial board meetings’
Now we are getting back to the same thing I ralsed, the
question I raised before.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: Whatever the case may be.

MR. ANDERSON: A newspaper is not a public
entity.

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: But under this definition
it's organized under the laws of the State of New Jersey.

MR. ANDERSON: Of course, it 1s. So is the
Exxon Corporation. Does the Prudential--

ASSEMBLYMAN KARCHER: 1I'm asking you whether they
should under the law.

MR. ANDERSON: No, I am not arguing that. I
don't think we are going to press on this. We are in favor
of the bill.

¢ ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: 1I'm sorry, we are going
to have to call 1t short now.

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: One question. While it's
not my feeling, sir, but I think a number of people have
said it, so I think it ought to be asked for the record.

It 1s the feeling that the newspapers which are governed
by the principal that man bites dog 1s news and not the
other way around, 1t would be in favor of this kind of bill

because 1t would give them more business and more conflict

and more controversy. Would you respond to that briefly?
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MR. ANDERSON: I have been an editorial man

for more than 40 years. I'm not interested 1in the financilial
end of the newspaper.

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: That's not what I'm talking
about. You're iQterested in news happening.

MR. ANDERSON: That's exactly right.

ASSEMBLYMAN DOYLE: News, by definitlion, generally
means conflict and controversy. Is 1t agreed that you
don't see the conflict and controversy at a public meeting,
you might see 1t at a private meeting? Is that the genesis
of your support of the bill? R

MR. ANDERSON: No, not necessarily. I think
the public is entitled to know what 1s going on at private
meetings.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAWKINS: Thank you, sir.

Paul Comiskey.

PAUL COMISKEY: I'm CQuncilman Paul Comiskey,
Vice-President of Township Council of Piscataway, New
Jersey, located in Middlesex County.

I come here today particularly to suggest some
areas of amendment to this bill. At first glance the
bill's nature is to providg any qualifications or opposition

to certain points of 1t 1s almost like sounding like you're

against faith, God and motherhood. But I don't feel this

is the case, that this bill as written goes entirely too

15¢
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far, imposes an excessive burden upon local municipalitiec,
which often doesn't come to bear when you first read it.

I am particularly disturbed, as are the majorlty
of the councllmen in my township, with a provision in this
btili which requires 72 hour advance notice ot the agenda.
We feel this 1s much tec restrictive. There are many
times when measures come up thav have to be put on the
agenda as late as Thursday afternoon tor a Thursday
evening agenda session. They are emergency measures, but
they are important to a township; the types of things that
if they have to be postponed for an additional two weeks
delay can result in additional inconvenience to the public.
it can result 1n waste of money and the like. People want
government to respond quickly. Otten they say we are
bogged down in bureaucracy, why don't you get moving on
things faster.

Well, 1f you impose regulations such as some
of them in this bill, I think you will help to slow down
some of the wheels of local and county government to an
excesslve extreme.

Witness the fact that under the Florida State
Sunshine Law, as they call it, they have a full-time
assistant state attorney in the State of F.orida 1n charge
of hearing complaints of violation of that Sunshine Law.

A healthy majority eof those complaints involve complaints
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from people who say 1 heard three councilmen talking
over a cup of coffee, it was public business and we feel
this 1s a violation of that law, will you look Into 1t.

Many times at our agenda meetings we have thought

of things at the last minute that were important. Councilmen

have brought these things up toward the end of the agenda,
they ask can 1t be put on for the Tuesday night agenda
session, and gives the following reasons why he feels
they are imperative to move so quickly. When they have
done this, we have rapped it around, explained it, we
answer questions, we get legal opinions. Thé”fézt is
sometimes it's not an emergency measure, but 1t is an
important measure, and we do place it on the public agenda
for Tuesday, and I don't feel that it's out of keeping
with our responsiveness to the public. I think it is a
meeting.

The minutes of our agenda meeting are not conducte
by our township. We do keep detailed minutes, of course,
of all public meetings. To impose upon us the requirements
to keep detalled public minutes of all council committees,
of all council agenda séssions, I feel one would add an
excessive burden upon us in paperwork and in typing. You
probably would need a new assistant deputy township clerk
fo handle some of thils bureaucracy of paperwork. I think

there would be duplication of paperwork. We have things

|1
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said at the agenda session copied into the minutes and
then they would be salid at the public meeting and also
copled into the minutes and then typed up in duplicate,
and I feel thls 1s a waste of the taxpayers' time and
money and our own good efforts,

We feel technically the three members of the
public body working on a council committee might well be
qualified as this 1s a meeting now of the public body.
Recently I served for three months éé chairman of the
Property Maintenance Code Committee, assigned by the
council, to draft suc